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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SURATGARH BIKANER
TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31* March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss( including other comprehensive
income ), the Statement of Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information( hereinafter referred to as ‘standalone IND AS financial statements’).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone IND AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash (lows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
elfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Basis of Qualified opinion

1. The company has not ascertained “Impairment of Assets” as per Ind-AS 36. Therefore,
its impact on Financial Statements is not ascerfainable.

2. The loans /credit facilities provided by lenders have been classified as Non-Performing
Assets (NPA) by all lenders as on balance sheet date, however in Ind-AS Financial
Statements the same is shown both under Short term & Long term borrowings on the
basis of original Sanction letter.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its loss and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

o

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

0

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement and
the statement of change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31*March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31*'March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
theCompany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company did not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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ii.  The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There is no requirement for funds to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S. R. Goyal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FR No. : 001537C

Place: New Delhi s/d
Date: 30™ May 2018 A.K. Atolia
(Partner)

M. No. : 077201
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of SURATGARH
BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) As explained to us , all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
in a phased periodical manner , which in our opinion is reasonable, having regards to size of
the company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the company.

As informed the Company does not have any inventory therefore paragraph 3 (ii) of the
order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms and limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Order are not
applicable;

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has complied with
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of Act, with respect to the loans, investments,
guarantees, and security made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.Therefore, paragraph 3 (v) of
the order is not applicable.

As per information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost record u/s 148 of the Companies Act 2013.

(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
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Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess to the extent
applicable and any other statutory dues have generally been deposited with the appropriate
authorities with some delays. According to the information and explanations given to us
undisputed amount payable in respect of aforesaid dues outstanding as at 3 [st of March,
2018 for a period of more than six months are are in respect of Tax Deducted at Source
amounting Rs.3,38,76,969/-andWorks Contracts Tax amounting to Rs.68,82,772/-.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us , there are no dues in respect
of Income tax , wealth tax , excise duty , custom duty , service tax and cess that have not
been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) The company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution

and banks.The details are as follows:
(Rs. in Lacs)

Terms Loan IFrom Banks & Financial 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Above 90
Institution Days Days Days Days
Interest Amount 584.02 514.25 567.87 8164.36
Principal Amount _ ~150.00 650.00
(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the

year;

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is a Private Limited Company & therefore
section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company, hence clause (xii) of para 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause (xv) of para 3 of the Order is
not applicable;

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934;

For S. R. Goyal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FR No. : 001537C

s/d

Place: New Delhi

Date: 30" May 2018 AK. Atolia
(Partner)

M. No. : 077201
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of SURATGARH
BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SURATGARH
BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED(‘the Company’), as of 31* March,
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
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Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

a) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

¢) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has limited documentation for identification of risk description with
control categories of its processes ,we have considered other related documentation available in
this regard, for obtaining sufficient understanding for its process and controls and based on the
above, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial
statements of the Company, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the
related Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and our report
dated March 31, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

For S. R. Goyal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FR No. : 001537C

Place: New Delhi s/d
Date: 30" May2018 A.K. Atoliay
(Partner)

M. No. : 077201
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SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LINITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018

Rupees in Lakhs

Note No.

As on 31st As on 31st March,
March, 2018 2017

ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
{b) Intangible asset under development
{c) Other intangible assets
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investment
{ii) Trade receivables
| {iii) Loans
(iv) Others
(d) Deferred tax assets(net)
(e) Other non current assets
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investment
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv} Loans
(v) Others
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

|4} Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

LIABILITIES
|(1) Non current liabilites
i {a) Firanciai liabilites
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(iii} Other financial liability
(b} Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilites {net)
(c) Other non current liabilties
(2) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i} Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(iii) Other financia! liability
(b) Other current liabilites
| {c) Provisions
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

10

11
12
13

72,514 39 65,868 60

83.73 83.73
8.40 10.06

24.08 24.08
10.88 8.86

72,641.48 55,995.33

17,007.00 17,007.00

42,443.61 44,554.42

262.82 183.45
2,366 74 165 .86
10,561.31 4,044.60

72,641.48 65,995.33

| A5 per our report on even date
For 5.R.Goyal & Co.
Charterad Accountants

rmy Ragist At A

s/d
{A.K. Atolia)
Partiyar

|Membership No. 0

Place : New Delhi
Dated Mav 30th 2018

s/d

Ritu Agzarwal

Company Secretary

s/d

- ('ﬁh‘ﬁsh Baheti

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 21) form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

MianEe Aumdr LaKknouad
Diractor|
DIN-00357695 |

s/d

5112?5.1'
'II‘QC[‘O["I

DIN-03612793

7
Fd



SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

For S.R.Goyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
|I’Firm Registratic

e

s/d

{A.K. Atolia)

Partner
Membership No. 077201 ~———""

Place : New Dethi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our audit report of even date

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018
Rupees in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Operating profit before working capital changes:

Adjusted for:

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 8,717.59 3,255.57

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 79.37 (3,497.54)

{ncrease} / Decrease in other current assets (2.02) 4,588.95

(Increase) / Decrease in debtors = 8,794 94 4,346.98

Less : Direct taxes paid

Net cash generated from / {used in) operating activities 8,794.94 4,346.98
B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Intangible assets under development 16,645.79) (13,392.88)

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (6,645.79) (13,392.88)
C. Cash flow from financing activities:

(Repayments) / Proceeds of secured loan {2,150.81) 6,588.80

(Repayments) / Proceeds of Equity Share capital - (2,150.81) 1,155.00 7,743.80

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (2,150.81) 7,743.80

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.66) (1,302.10)

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents 10.06 1,312.16

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents (refer note §) 8.40 10.06
Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 21) form an integral part of the financial statements

s/d

Ritu Agarwal
Company Secretary

s/d

sh Baheti
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Boardj

S,
Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00352495

s/d
—=="{ Sunita Rapia
actor
DIN-03612793/

=



Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

A Equity Share Capital
Rupees in Lakhs

[Particulars Share capital
Balance as on April 1, 2015 9,000
Add: Shares issued during the year 2015-16 6,852
Balance as on March 31, 2016 15,852
Add: Shares issued during the year 2016-17 1,155
Balance as on March 31, 2017 17,007
Add: Shares issued during the year 2011—18 -
Balance as on March 31, 2018 17,007

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 21) form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date

For S.R.Goyal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.0Q1534C_ s/d s/d
“Ritu Agarwal AHjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Company Secretary Diractor
{A.K. Atolia) DIN-003576895
Partner
Membership No. 07 73%Bd ActZ s/d
s/d [
Place : New Delhi T _MiResh Baheti ffactor
Dated : May 30th, 2018 Chief Financial Officer L//DIN'03612793]




SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2013

1. Corporate Information
Suratgarh Bikaner Toll Road Company Private Limited (or ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India headquartered in Delhi with a registerad

office at Divine Bliss, st Floor, 2/3 ludgas Court Road Kolkata, West Bengal 700027

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 (as
amenrdad) raad with Saction 122 5Frha Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with affect from April 1, 2016 and therefora Ind AS issued, notified and made effactive il
the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of preparation of these financialstatements.

These are the Company’s first Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements and the date of transition to Ind AS as required has been considered to be April 1, 2015

Thie financial statement upto the year ended March 31, 2016, were prepared under the historical cost convention

The financiai statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting Standards as prescribed
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable (Previous GAAP) to the company.Previous period

figures in the Financial Statements have now been restated in compliance to Ind AS

3. Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business:

Road on DBFOT (Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer) basis:

A 'Concession Agreement’ entered into between Suratgarh Bikaner Toll Road Company Private Limited (termed as “concessionaire”} and Public Works Department,
Goverament of Rajasthan on 09.05 2012, conferred the rights of concession of 172,384 km road, to implement the project and recover the project cost, through
levy of toll revenue over the toll period commencing from the date of start upto a period of 16 years (including construction period of 2 years). The concessionaire
is requirad to pay premium of * 2.50 crore in the first year of COD and an increase of 5% thereafter every year. The concessionaire is required to transfer the project
asset to PWD, Government of Rajasthan, in accordance with the said concession agreement at the end of concession period.

3. 1.Basis of Prepration

Tha Financial Stataments have been praparad under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for cartain financial instruments that are measured in

terms of refevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting pariod

|Historcal cost convention is g=neraily based on the fair vaiue of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services
|As the 00213003 cydle CanNnot 2= :entified in normal course Fhe 5ame has been assumen ta nave Agratian of 12 months Assers and Lianilinas njve nean ciassifian
as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 '‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule 1l to the Companie'.|
Act, 2013

fne Standafone Financial Statements are prasented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearast Lakhs, uniess otherwise indicated.
Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for such
measurement:

(a) Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b] Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability,
(c) Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data.

3.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years

3.3 Property Plant & Equipment:
On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015

measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part af

the plant and aguipment and dborrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.




3.4 Intangible Asset
The company imtialy racognisas the intangible asset at Cost and subsequently meaure the intangible asset at its cost less accumulated amortisation and any

impairment losses by following the Cost model as per Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets" . During the construction phase of the arrangement the company assetis
classified as a3 right to receive a licence to charge users of the infrastructure The company estimates the fair value of its consideration received or receivable
as equal to the forecast construction costs

In accordance with Ind AS 38, Intangible 3ssets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the period in which it is expected to he

available for use by the company.

3.5 Financial Instruments
The company recognizes ihe financial assets and financial habilites winen the recognition criteria of financial instrument as specified under ind AS 109 is met.

Financials Asset

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset except in the case
of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in

profit or loss.
Subseguent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

Financial Asset at amortised cost

A ‘Financial Asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in

tinance income in the profit or loss.

Financial Asset at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income("FVTOCI")

A ‘Financial Asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and

b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.Financial Asset included within the FVTOCI category are measured initiaily as well as at each reporting darte at

fair value. Fair value movemenrts are recognized in the other comprenensive income ("OCI")

Financial Asset at fair Value through Profit & Loss {"FVTPL")

FYTRL o5 3 re5idual category for Firancial Assets. Any financial aset, which does not maat the
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL

In addition, the group may elect to designate a Financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
critaria, 3s at FYTPL Howevar, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 3 measurament or

recognition inconsistency (referred to as "accounting mismatch’).

Derogpnisition of Financial asset
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when the rights to

receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

Impairment of financial assets
The company assessas on a forward looking basis the expected credit iosses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology

applied depends on whether there has been a significant increases in credit risk. Note-21 details how the group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit Risk.
For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by IND AS 109 Financial instrument, which requires expected lifetime losses to

be recognised from initial recognition of the receivabies,

Financial Liablities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payabies, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial iiabilities at fair value through profit or Iloss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or toss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.Gains or losses

on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial Liablities at Amortised Cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses ara recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation orocess. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit

and {oss




3.6 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
If the affect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a currant gra-tax rate that reflacts, when aporopriate, the risks specific to the

liability When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date

Cantingant liabilities and assets
Caontingant liahility and assats 3re not recogrisad but ara disclosed in the notes to tha financia! statements in accordance with IND AS 37.

3.7 Service Concession Arangements

The Company Operates and maintains infrastructure (operation services) used to provide a public service for a specified period of time

Thesz arrangements may include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life

Under Appendix A to Ind AS 11 - Service Concession Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible
assat model is used to the extent that the company receives a right (i.e a franchisee) to charge users of the public services

Income from the concession arrangements earned under the intangible asset model consists of the:

{i) fair value of the contract revenue, which is deemed to be fair value of the consideration transferred to acquire the asset; and

(ii) payments actually received from the users.

The intangible asset is amortised over its expected useful life in a way that reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the
company, starting from the date when the right to operate starts to be used. Based on these principles, intangible asset is amortised on the basis of revenlie

earned.
Any asset carried under concession agreements is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal.

Determination of fair values of Intangible asset.
The fair value of Intangible assets consists of the amount spent on contruction of asset

3.8 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards are transferred as per terms and no uncertainity exists regarding the amount of the consideration

that will be derived from the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
t2rms of payment.

Revenue related to SCA :

513ge of compiation of the work garformed

Ravenia ralatad o Construction under 3 s2rvice ZONCassion arrangament is recognisad sased on

Service concession aggrangement: Exemption
On Tracsition to Ind As, the compaiy has adopted optional exeamprtion under Ind As -101 para D22 wnich provides to continue witit the previous carrying amounts

of those financial and intangible assets (however previously classified) as their carrying amounts as at the date of transition

3.9 Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the

astimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by

considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument.

3.10 Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

3.11 Deffered Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at reporting date

Neferred incame tax assets and liahilities are measurad using tax rates and tax laws that have been 2nacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differances are expectad to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity "

3.12 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqguisition, construction or production of ar asset that necassarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur Borrowing costs consist of

interast and other costs that an antity incurs in connectinn with the hornwing »f funrds Borrowrng =93t 3150 inchidas axchanga diffarancas to rha av-ant ~agardad
— |

95 317 djLSTM2nt 10 the Dorrowiing 5513




3.13 Segment reporting
The company's operation pre dominantly consist of infrastructure devolepment ,construction % operation , hence it operates in one business segment

3.14 Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method , whereby profit before tax is adjusted of the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferral or

accruals of past or future operating cash raciept ar payments and item of income or expenses assosiated with investing or financing cash flows The zash flows from
operating , investing and financing activities of the company are segregated Cash and cash aquivalent in the Balance sheet comprise cash and cash at bank.

3.15 Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and cash-in-hand. The Company consider all highly liquid investments which are subject to an insignificant risk of

change in value with an original maturity of three months or less from date of purchase to be cash equivalent.

3.16 Employee benefits

Short Term:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short
tarm compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the period in which the employee
renders related service

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the
contribution.

Long Term:

Provident Fund: The contribution to provident fund is in the nature of defined contribution plan. The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in
accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.The contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period
in which services are rendered.

Gratuity & Leave Encashment(Un-Funded): The cost is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuation being carried at cash at each
Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary. The retirement benefits obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for recognized past service cost

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

The preparations of the financial statements in conformity with recognize measurement principie of Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions These estimates, judgments and assumotions affect the apolication of accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets and liabilities, the
|disc|osure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and rhe reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the oeriod
JA:counting estimatas could changs from oeriod to pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates Appropriate changes in estimates are made as

ncas tatwezn the actual rasults and estimatas ars racogaized in the

3 Gat

s surrcundirg the astimatas Dif

management becomas 3war2 of changas in
year in whicn the results are known/materialized and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financiai statements

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgement and the use of assumptions in the financial
statements have been disclosed below The key assumptions concerning the future and other ey sources of astimation uncertainty at the balance asset dara, that
have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a} Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables
The Company evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired and determines the amount of impairment loss as a result of
the inability of the debtors to make required payments. The Company bases the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness of the
trade receivables and historical write-off experience If the financial conditions of the trade receivable were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than

estimated

{b) Provisions and Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it
is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. Based on management estimates the same does not qualify for recognition in the financial

statements.




SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
Rupees in Lakhs
particulars As on 31st As on 31st March,
- March, 2018 2017
INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Payment For Development Charges 52,102.36 52,102.36
Design & Survey Charges 198.39 13915
Bank Changes 116 26 116 09
Salary & Wages 191.61 17675
Interest on Term Loan 18,735 43 12,290.69
Director Sitting Fees 4.00 400
Filing Fee 106.68 106.68
Travelling Expenses 1.67 137
Independent Engineers Fees 605.77 533.77
Insurance Charges 121.97 110.70
Preliminary Expenses Written off 0.30 0.30
Legal & Professional Fees 88.35 80.82
Payment to Auditor
Audit fee 7.47 5.97
Internal Audit Fee 0.48 0.37
Certification Fee 1.80 1.80
Loan Processing Fee 28.27 28.27
Miscellanous Expenses 96.30 96.30
Finance Cost (Transaction Cost amortised) 107.28 73.21
72,514.39 55,868.60
Trade Receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 8373 8373
Others |
Unsecurad, zonsiderad good {refer note 5 1) 3373 8373
1
Trade Receivanies are suoject 1o confirmation from certain parties |
:'
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks in current account 8.40 10.06
8.40 10.06
CURRENT TAX ASSET
Tax Deducted at Source 24.08 24.08
24.08 24.08
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses 10.88 8.86
10.88 8.86




SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes an Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars

As on 31st
March, 2017

As on 31st
March, 2018

]

9

3.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

{CY 17,00,70,000 equity shares of 10/- each.)
(P.Y 17,00,70,000 equity shares of * 10/- each.)

Issued, subscribed and paid up

(C.Y 17,00,70,000 equity shares of 10/- each fully paid up)
(P.Y 17,00,70,000 equity shares of 10/- each fully paid up)

1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the raporting period

17,007.00 17,007.00
17,007.00 17,007 00
17,007.00 17,007.00

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars Number Value Number V?I.ue
("in Lakhs) (" in Lakhs)
Equity Shares :
No. of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 170,070,000 17,007 158,520,000 15,852
Add: Issued during the period - = 11,550,000 1,155
No. of Shares outstanding at the end of the year 170,070,000 17,007 170,070,000 17,007

distribution of all preference amount, in proportion of their shareholding.

3 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate shares in the company:

2 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share.In the event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

{i} First charge on 2!l the movable & immovable assets of the company

(i) First charge on escrow account.

(iii} First charge on intangible assets
(iv) First charge on all toll revenues and receivables,

{v) First charge on the funds in debt service reserve account.

(vi) Pledge of 51% equity shares of the company held by the holding company

10.2 Maturity profile of long term borrowings are as set out below :*

Name of the shareholders
No. of shares % | No. of shares %

MBL Infrastructures Limited 10,02,70,000 58 96 |10,02,70,000 58 96

MBL Projects Limited 6,97,82,250 34.30 (5,83,32,250 3430

MBL {A) Capital Limited 1,14,50,000 673
10 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITY - BSORROWINGS

Secured term loan

Conm iy 17 443 44 594 42 |

42 4 1 44,594 42

101 Tarm lcan availed by the company from banks of Rs. 45000 Lakhs is secured by foilowing:

Rupees in Lakhs

21 Inciudes craditors figr sypenses o

Particulars Rate of within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to3years beyond3years
Interest (%}
From Bank 12.50 | 12,197.23 ] 2,568 32 3,070.48 36,804.82
# Interest rate is linked to base rate of the lender bank, which may vary
* Resolution Plan has been submitted Bankers for consideration.
11. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITY - TRADE PAYABLES
A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
BjTotal outsta.mdmg dues of Creditors other th-an micro enterprises and 262.82 183 45
small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
262.82 183,45
111 Trade payables ara subject to confirmation from certain parties.
12,  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITY- CURRENT
Current maturities of long term borrowings
From a bank 2,366.74 165.86
2.366 74 165 36
|13. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payabie 486.46 479.70
Other liabilities (refer note 13.1) 10.074.85 35T
10,561 31 /G




Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

14.

15.

16.

SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Disclosure of related parties / related party transactions:
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related parties disclosures , name of the related party, related party relationship,
transaction and outstanding balances including commitments wnere control exists and with whom transaction have taken place during the

reporting period are:

A Related party disclosures

Relationship Name of the related party
Holding Company MBL Infrastructures Limited
Key Management Personnel a) Anjanee Kuamar Lakhotia {Director)

p) Sunita Paita {Director)
c) Mukesh Baheti (Chief Financial Officer)
d) Ritu Agarwal (Company Secretary)

B Transactions carried out with related parties referred in "A" above, in ordinary course of business
Rupeas in Lakhs

Holding Company Key Management Personnel
Nature of Transactions 31st March 31st March
St VIAreh 1 315t March 2017 | 31t March 2018
2018 2017
Development charges paid
MBL Infrastructures Limited - 7,522.02 . =
Salary
Mukesh Baheti - - 10.84 783
Manisha Choudhary . : = 498
Ritu Agarwal - . 4.00
Director Sitting Fees
Kumar Singh Baghel . 0.45
Ram Dayal Modi - = 0.45
Sunita Palta 0.45
C Balance outsiandling as on 31st Maich, 2013
| Holding Company | Key Management Personnel |
Nature of raasactions 31st March I 31st March
| ' SEMIATER | 315t March 2017 | 31st March 2018
2018 2017
Trade payable
MBL Infrastiuctures Limited 172.35 157.49 = =
MBL Projects Limited 11.20 . . -
Salary & Wages
Manisha Choudhary - - - 2.95

The Company has defaulted in the repayment of dues (interest and principal) during the period as per the original sanction letter and as

detailed below:

Period of Default* Rupees in Lakhs
Terms Loan From Banks & Financial Institution 0 to 30 Days 31 to 60 Days 61 to 90 Days | Above 90 Days

Interest Amount 584.02 514.25 567.87 8,164 36

Principal Amount 150.00 - 650.00

*Resoiution Plan has been submitted to the Bankers for consideration

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of
business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated and all the known liabilities have been provided for.

The Company dparates in only one segment, namely “Toll Roads” hence there are no reportabie segments under Ind AS-108 ‘Segment
Reporting’. Hence, separate business segment information is not applicable,
The board of directors of the company has been identified as The Chief Operating Decision Makar (CODM). The Chief Operating Dacisicn
Maker also monitors the operating results as one single segment for the purposa of making decisions about resource allocation and
performanca assessment and hence, thera ara no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the financial

statements




SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statement as on 31-03-2018

Note 17 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations. The Company principal financial asset includes loan , trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations.

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market

prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, depaosits, investments, and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. In order to optimize the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk,
treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of the fixed rate and floating rate
financial instruments in its total portfolio.

{i) The 2xpasure of group borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of raparting period are as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Variable rate borrowings 44,810 44,760
Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings 44,810 44,760

(i) Sensitivity

Profit/loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a resuft of changes in interest rates

Increase/ Decrease in Basis Points

Impact on Profit before Tax

Particulars

March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
]Borrowings +50 +50 224 224 |
| -50 -50 224 224

{b) Foreign currency risk
The Company does not operates internationally and as the Company has not obtained any foreign currency loans and also doesn't have any

foreign currency trade payables and foreign receivables outstanding therefore, the company is not exposed to any foreign exchange risk.

(c) Price Risk
The company does not have any investments in equity and commaodity at the current year end and previous year. Therefore the company is not

exposed to price risk.




Credit risk
Cradit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations rasulting in financial loss to the company. To|

manage this, tne Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condittons, current
economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an on going basis through each reporting period To assess whether there is significant increase in credit risk, it considers reasonable and

supportive farward looking information such as:

(i} Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.

(i) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty

(iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its obligation

(iv) Significant increase in credit risk an other financial instruments of the same counterparty

{v) significant changes in the value of collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees or credit enhancements

The company's only source of revenue is from toll collection which is mostly collected in cash by company and only trade recievables that a|
company has are against the the grant to be recieved, which is a goverment authority ,therefore company is nat exposed to any credit risk.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings

assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will nat be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Company’s
objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company's management is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by
senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual

undiscounted payments:

i Less than
As at March 31, 2018 Carrying Amount On Demand More than one year Totai
One Year
Borrowings 44,810 35 2,366 74 42,443.61 44,810.35 |
Other Liabilities 262.82 7535 137 47 262 82 |
Total 45.073.17 2,442.09 42,631.08 45,073 17
S - . o o Less than -
As at March 31, 2017 Carrying Amount On Demand . More than one year Total
One Year
Borrowings 44,760.28 - 155.86 44,594 42 44,750 28
Other Liabiliues 183.45 - - 183.45 183.45
Total 44,943.73 - 165.86 44,777.87 44,943.73

Note 18 : Capital Management

(a) Risk Management
The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return on

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of following gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus debt

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Debt (Borrowings from Banks & Financial Institution) 45,073.17 44,943.73
Cash & bank balances 8.40 10.06
Net Debt 45,064.77 44,933.67
Total Equity | 17,007.00 | 17,007.00 |
Nat debt to equity ratio (Gearing Ratio) , 264.98%| 264.21%|
Notes-

(i) Debris defined as long-tarm and short-term borrowings including current maturities as described in notas 12
|II) Total equity {as shown in balanca sheet) includes issued capital and all other 2quity reserves |




a)

b)

ii)

iiif)

SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statement as on 31-03-2018

Note 19 : Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017

Financial Asset
Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 83.73 83.73
Other Financial Assets .
Cash and Bank Balances 8.40 10.06
Total Financial Assets 92.13 93.79
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 44,810.35 44,760.28
Trade payables 262.82 183.45
Total Financial Liabilities 45,073.17 44,943.73

Fair Value Technique

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to astimate
the fair values:
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, current trade payables, current financial liabilities and borrowings approximate their
carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The Board considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at cost/amortised cost in the financial statements approximates their fair values

Long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at short intervals Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings
approximates their carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value subject to adjustments made for transaction cost.




SURATGARH BIKANER TOLL ROAD COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

20 Previous year figures have been reclassified, regrouped, rearranged and recomputed to conform to this year's classification, wherever considered

21 Figures in the financial statements have been rounded off in rupees lakhs upto two decimal places

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 21) form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report on even date

For S.R.Goyal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

Firm Registration Mo.801537C
- s/d s/d
s/d " Rjtu Agarwal Anjghee Kumar Lakhotia
Company Secretary Director
(A.K. Atolia) DIN-00357695
Partner
Membership No. 077201
s/d Bunita Palta|

Place : New Delhi LATkesh Baheti / Dir r
Dated : 30th May. 2018 Chief Financial Officer DJN-03512793
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AUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
FOR FY 2017-18



D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO Ui MEVBERS OF MBL PROJECTS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

we have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of MBL PROJECTS LIMITED(the

Compaay’ ). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018. the Statement ol Profit and Loss (including Other

Comprehensive Income). the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes intiquity and a
Loy of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Uhe Company s Board of’ Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
Che At with respeet 1o the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and lair view ol
e linancial position. financial performance and cash Nows ol the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
senerally aeeepted in India. including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also ihcludes maintenance of adeguate decounting records
i sccordunce with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing arid
derecting trauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
coutrels. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, refevant 1o
the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
(rom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind As [linancial statements based on our audit.

We have wken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which arc
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Thosce
Stundards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

7/1. Fel‘n Road, lSt Floor KO kata' ) . . . ~-dy



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;



e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to

the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30™ day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s MBL PROJECTS LIMITEDfor the year

ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viil.

ix.

On the basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own fixed assets at any-time during
the year under audit, hence, clause (i) of the order is not applicable to the company

Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
year under audit, hence, clause (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard to
deposits accepted from the public during the year.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31* March,
2018for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.



X1.

Xil.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

A

s/d

I}cbasisﬂ Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s MBL PROJECTS LIMITED for

the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s MBL PROJECTS LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of 31"March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICATI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over



financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the



W

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
' Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30™ day of May, 2018



MBL PROJECTS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018

Rupees in Lakh

Particulars NoteNo | Ason 31.03.2018 Ason 31.03.2017
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investment 4 6,984.24 8,825.23
(i1) Others 5 1,021.39 -
(b) Non Current tax assets (net) 6 2.38 2.38
(c) Other Non Current Assets 7 418.59 -
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10.03 0.36
(ii) Others 9 746.19 -
(b) Other Current Assets 10 104.65 £
TOTAL ASSETS 9,287.47 8,827.97
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 11 2,984.25 2,984.25
(b) Other equity (738.90) (17.85)
LIABILITIES
(1) Non current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Other financial liability 12 3,716.92 5,328.72
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 13 24.89 9.16
(c) Other non current liabilties 14 1,469.85 521.49
(2) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Other financial liability 15 6.58 2.10
(b) Other current liabilites 16 1,823.87 0.10
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 9,287.47 8,827.97

As per our report on even date
For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 326859E
A

. s/

(Debasish Ghosh)
Partner :
Membership No. 052653

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 29) form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

v Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia

s/d

Rama Shankar Singh
Chief Financial Officer

s/d
Place : New Delhi l'}})r"i'!-\-Hf:TJn Sharm:y
Dated : May 30th, 2018 Lompany secretary

Director
DIN-00357695

s/d

/ Sunita Palta
- Director




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March,2018

Rupees in Lakh

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 2018 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operation 17 2,300.00 16.90
Other income 18 376.36 313.75
(A) TOTAL INCOME 2,676.36 330.65
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed -
Employee benefits expense 19 43.09 14.18
Finance costs 20 333.09 319.09
Other expenses 21 3,005.49 2.44
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 3,381.67 335.70
(C) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B) (705.32) (5.06)
(D) Exceptional Items -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (C-D) (705.32) (5.06)
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax = 0.09
(2) Income Tax for earlier years -
(3) Deferred Tax 15.73 (1.85)
Total Profit/(Loss) for the period (E) (721.05) (3.30)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Remeasurements of the Net Defined Benefit Plans:
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans - Remeasurement of employee
benefit obligations )
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans - Income tax effect -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (F)
Total INCOME (E+F) (721.05) (3.30)
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) (2.42) (0.01)
Basic
Diluted

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 29) form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date
For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 326859E

s/d
(Debasish Ghosh) s/d
Partner Rama Shankar Singh

Membership No. 052653 Chief FinancieLOfﬁcer

s/d
lin’I‘l':TRas,\ Sharina
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Mijanee Kumar Lakhotia

Director
DIN-00357695

s/d
Sunita Palta
Director
DIN-03612793




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

Equity Share Capital
Particulars Share Capital
Balance as on April 01,2016 2,984.25
Add: Changes during the year 2016-17 =
Balance as on March 31, 2017 2.984.25
Add: Changes during the year 2017-18 -
Balance as on March 31, 2018 2.984.25
Other equity
Particulars Retal.ned Total

Earnings
Balance as on April 01,2016 (14.55) (14.55)
Profit for the year (3.30) (3.30)
Balance as on March 31, 2017 (17.85) (17.85)
Profit for the year (721.05) (721.05)
Balance as on March 31,2018 (738.90) (738.90)
Retained Earnings generally represent the undistributed profits /amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
As per our report on even date
For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

s/d

Firm Registration No. 326859E
Anjofice Kumar Lakhotia

Dirgctor
s/d s/d DIN-00357695
(Debasish Ghost] Rama Shankar Singh
Partner— Chief Financial O(#TEr . s/d
Membership No. 052653 SunitgPalta
s/d Director
Place : New Delhi Om Prafish Siurma ' “  DIN-03612793
Dated : May 30th, zvio Company Secrgtary




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rupees in Lakh
For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax (705.32) (5.06)
Adjustments For
Finance Cost 333.09 319.09
Interest Income (376.36) (313.75)
Operating profit before working capital changes (748.58) 0.28
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Long term Liabilities 948.36 312.52
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 1,828.26 (623.39)
Increase / (Decrease) in Non current Assets (1,439.99) -
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Assets (850.84) (0.09)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (262.79) (310.67)
Direct Tax Paid (Net of refund received) - 0.09
(262.79) (310.75)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
(Additions)/Disposals of investments 1,840.99 (24.98)
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 1,840.99 (24.98)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital
Prcoceeds(Repayment) from Long term Borrowings (1,611.80) 332.69
Interest and Other Finance Charges 43.27 (5.34)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (1,568.53) 327.35
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 9.67 (8.39)
Cpening balance of cash & cash equivalents 0.36 8.75
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents (refer note 6) 10.03 0.36

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Notes:
1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)

statement of cash flows.

For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Arijanee Kumar Lakhotia
s/d Director
(Debasish Ghosti) d DIN-00357895
Partner Rama Shanséar Singh .
Membership No. 052653 Chief FinanciaL(LHEcer s/d B
Place : New Delhi unita-alla
Dated : May 30th, 2018 s/d : ) Director
Om Prakash Sharfia/ “DIN-03612793

Company Secretary




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

1. Corporate Information
MBL Projects Limited (or 'the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
companies Act applicable in India and a registered office at Baani Corporate One Tower, Suite No. 303 3rd Floor, Plot No. 5, Dist. Commercial

Centre, Jasola New Delhi 110076.

Description of Business:

MBL Projects Limited was incorporated in the year 2012 to execute infrastructure projects on BOT (Build-Operate- Transfer) basis, directly
or through Investment in subsidiaries to be formed as SPV (Special Purpose Vehicles) for the execution of such projects. The objective of MBL
Projects Limited is to consolidate the BOT Projects undertaken by MBL Infrastructures Limited by making investments in BOT Projects and
transfer of existing investments made by MBL Infrastructures Limited in BOT Projects. The Company would be a single-window operational
forefront for all BOT Projects of MBL Infrastructures Limited and thereby providing a radical and systematic execution of the BOT Projects.

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2016 and
therefore Ind AS issued, notified and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of
preparation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting
Standards as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable
(Previous GAAP) to the company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted/restated in compliance to Ind

2.2 Recent Pronouncements

Ind AS 115

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended
rules”). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and
Ind AS 18, “Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should
be recognised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be
entitled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

« Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS
115 is expected to be insignificant”

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3. 1.Basis of Prepration

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets and Liabilities
have been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ and Schedule I1i to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise
indicated.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs
employed for such measurement:

(a) Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.
(c) Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data.

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes o (inance team that has
overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation
adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.




3.2 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within the operating cycle of]
the company or otherwise these are classified as non-current.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of|
financial instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost.

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or received,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists of
consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss
Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive inconme are classified as
Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective cvidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month

expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets thal result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another paity.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FYTOCI), the difference belween the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss
On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equily to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. L




.
Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.3 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic
henefits is probable

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards are transferred as per terms and no uncertainity exists regarding the amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment.

3.5 Interest Income

Interest has been accounted using effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted /
3.6 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary Differences between the carrying amount of|
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit as well as for
unused tax losses or credits. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are also recognized on temporary differences arising from business combinations except to the
extent they arise from goodwill that is not taken into account for tax purposes.

Deferred taxes are calculated at the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income in equity, in which case the corresponding deferred tax is also recognized directly in equity.

3.7 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.8 Employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such
as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised
during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances,
expected cost of completion of contracts, provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual
results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known.




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars Asat As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
4 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
Investment in Equity Instruments (at Cost)
Subsidiaries Company -Partly owned
MBL (MP) Road Nirman Company Limited 2,977.00
2,97,70,000 (29770000) equity shres of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
MBL (CGRG) Road Limited 5.00
49,950 (0) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
MBL (GSY) Road Limited 5.00
49,950 (0) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
MBL (RGY) Road Limited 1.00 :
MBL (Udaipur Bypass) Road Limited 5.00 5.00
49,950 (0) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each {ully paid
In Associates
Suratgarh Bikaner Toll Road Company Private Limited 6,978.23 5,833.23
6,97,82,250 (5,82,32,250) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
Measured at FVTPL
In Others
Orissa Steel Expressway Private Limited* 0.02 0.02
200 (200) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
6.984.24 8,825.23
* Investment in Orissa Steel Expressway Private Limited has been carried at cost.
5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other Advances 1,021.39
1,021.39
6 CURRENT TAX ASSET(NET)
Tax deducted at source (refer note 6.1) 2.38 2.38
2:38 2.38
6.1 Tax deducted at source of Rs. 2,55,000/- (2,55,000/-) is net of provision for taxation Rs.17,400 (17,400/-).
7 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Assets 418.59 =
418.59
8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance 0.17 0.36
Cash on hand 9.87 -
10.03 0.36
9 OTHERFINANCIAL ASSETS
Other Advances 746.19
746.19 x
10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Assets 104.65
104.65 -
11 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
5,00,00,000 (5,00,00,000) equity shares of " 10/- each 5,000.00 5,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
2,98,42,500 (PY 2,98,42,500) equity shares of * 10/- each fully paid up 2,984.25 2,984.25
2,984.25 2,984.25
11.1 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of* 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share.ln the event of Liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preference amaount, in proportion of their shareholding.
11.2 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the augregate shares in the company: |
Name of the shareholders Asar31.03.2018 As at31.03.2017
=l chgres % i
MBL Infrastructures Limited - 1.49.51,100 50.10% 1,49,51,100 50.10%
MBL (A) Capital Limited \\ 1,48,91.400 49.90% 1,48,91,400 49.90%
| 2,98,42,500 100.00% 2,98,42,500 100.00%




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
12 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITY
Others 3,716.92 5,328.72
3,716.92 5.328.72
13 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The following is the analysis of deferred tax liabilities presented in the Balance Sheet:
Deferred tax liabilites (net) 24.89 9.16
24.89 9.16

14

15

16

Gross deferred tax liability and assets for the year ended 31st March 2018 are as follows:

Particulars ([);2;3:1:25 Recognised in | Closing Balance
01.04.2017 Profit & Loss 31.03.2018
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference in carrying value and tax base of Financial Liability 189.64 471.11 660.75
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 189.64 471.11 660.75
Deferred Tax Assets
Difference in cariying value and tax base of Non Financial Liability 180.48 455.38 635.86
Total Deferred Tax Assets 180.48 455.38 635.86
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities/(Assets) after set off 9.16 15.73 24.89
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILTIES
Deferred Credit 1,469.85 521.49
1,469.85 521.49
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITY
Salary Payble 211 1.20
Other liabilities 4.47 0.90
6.58 2.10
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITY
Statutory dues payable 6.18 0.10
Deferred Credit 367.46
Other Advances 1,450.23 -
1,823.87 0.10




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

For the year ended

For the year

31.03.2018 ended 31.03.2017
17 INCOME - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Gross Receipt
Income from operation 2,300.00 16.90
2,300.00 16.90
18 OTHER INCOME
Other Income -
Finance Income on account of Amortisation of Loan 367.24 313.75
Finance Income on account of Amortisation of Advances 9.12 =
376.36 313.75
19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and bonus 43.09 14.18
43.09 14.18
20 FINANCE COSTS
Finance Cost on account of Amortisation of Loan 295.30 319.09
Finance Cost on account of Amortisation of Advances 11.31 >
Loss on Change in Estimates 26.48 =
333.09 319.09
21 OTHER EXPENSES
Expenses - Other Expenses
Payment to auditors
Statutory Audit 0.12 0.12
Filing fees 0.04 e
Directors Sitting Fees = 0.60
Legal & professional fees 20.20 0.07
Preliminary expenses written off - 1.52
Miscellaneous expenses 0.13 0.14
Stock Written off 2,977.00 =
Travelling Expenses 8.00 -
3,005.49 2.44




MBL PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

22 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related parties disclosures , name of the related party, related party relationship, transaction
and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have taken place during the reporting period are:

A. Related party disclosures
Relationship
Holding company

Subsidiary company

Key Management Personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key

management personnel or their relatives

Name of the related party

MBL Infrastructures Limited

MBL (Udaipur Byp

ass) Road Limited

Rama Shankar Singh(Chief Financial Officer)
Om Prakash Sharma (Company Secretary)

MBL (MP) Toll Road Company Limited

MBL Highway Development Company Limited

Suratgarh Bikaner
MBL A Capital Ltd

Toll Road Company Pvt Ltd

B. Transactions carried out with the related party referred in "A" above, in the ordinary course of business

A. Transactions

Rupees In Lakhs

Enterprises owned or
Holding Company Key Management Personnel significantly influenced by
key management personnel
Particulars or their relatives
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Consultancy fee received
MBL (MP} Toll Road Company Limited = 16.90
Advance Given
MBL Highway Development Company Limited 0.89
Suratgarh Bikaner Toll Road Company Pvt Ltd 11.20
MBL A capital Ltd 1,546.83
Advance Received
MBL Infrastructures Limited 9.64 14.69
Advance Repaid
MBL Infrastructures Limited 264.66
B. Outstanding Balance Rupees In Lakhs
Enterprises owned or
Holding Company Key Managerial Personnel significantly influenced by
key management personnel
Particulars or their relatives
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Other Current Advances
MBL Highway Development Co. Ltd 0.89
Suratgarh Bikaner Toll Road Co. Pvt Ltd 11.20
Other Non Current Assets
MBL A capital Limited 1,021.39
Other Financial Liabilities
MBL Infrastructures Limited 3,711.42 5,327.72
MBL (MP) Toll Road Company Limited - . 2.42
Deferred (Amortized Cost)
MBL A Capital Ltd 523.24
MBL Infrastructures Limited 1,837.31 521.49

23 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
(a) Risk Management

The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimai capital structure to
reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return ou

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of following gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus debt.

Since there is no debt or borrowed [unds, hence no disclosure is given on Capital Gearing ratio.




24
2)

b)

iii)

iv)

25

11,

Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy
Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

Rs in lakh
Particulars As at March 31,2018 As at March 31, 2017

Financial Asset
Measured at amortised cost*
Cash and Bank Balances 10.03 0.36
Measured at FVTPL*
Investment in others 0.02 0.02
Total Financial Assets 10.05 0.38
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost*
Other Financial Liabilities 3,716.92 5,328.72
Total Financial Liabilities B 3,716.92 5,328.72

* Both financial asset and financial liability are measured using Level Il inputs

Fair Value Technique
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, current trade payables, current financial liabilities and borrowings approximate their
carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The Board considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at cost/amortised cost in the financial statements approximates their fair values.

Long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at short intervals. Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings
approximates their carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value subject to adjustments made for transaction cost.

The Company has neither entered into any foreign currency transaction nor it has taken any borrowings (except dues to holding Company) . The
Company is threfore not exposed to foreign cucurrency or interest risk. The Company financial asset primarily comprises of investiment in subsidiary
and associates which are not listed in stock exchange. These investments are unquoted long term strategic in nature and hence the Company is not
exposed any market risk.

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, market risk, credit risk and liquidation risk. The Company's focus is to forsee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise financial adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company senior management
oversees the managment of market risk. The risks are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that the financial are identificcl,
measured, and managed in accordance with the Company policies and risk objectives.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Marleet

prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and com modity price risk.

Credit risk
The company has no debt outstanding from its customer and as such there is no exposure to the credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Company’s
objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company's management is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by
senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

Other Liabilities

Carrying Less than More than

Y a Total
ear Amount On Demand One Year one year ota
As at March 31,2018 3,723.50 6.58 3,716.92 3,723.50_
Total 3,723.50 - 6.58 3,716.92 3,723.50
i d ha
Year Carrying On Demand Less than More than Total
Amount One Year one year
As al Maih 31,2017 5.330.82 2,10 5,328.72 5,330 87
Total 5,330.82 - 2.10 5,328.72 5.330.82

The above dues are payable to Holding Company . There are no sigificant liabilities payable to external indeoendent parties and hance the
Company is not exposed to liquidity risks




26

27

28

29

The company’s operation predominantly consist of infrastructure development, construction and operation and this is its operating business
segment and all other activities revolve around the main activity. Accordingly, there being no other reportable segment separate disclosures as

per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” have not been made.

Tax Expense

(@) The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:

{Amount in Lakh)

(

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2018 2017
)|Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax 0.09
Income Tax for earlier years - -
Deferred Tax 15.73 (1.85)
Total Income tax expenses recognised in statement of 15.73 (1.76)
(it} Income tax expense 1ecognised in OCI

Deferred tax expense on remeasurement of defined benefit pla -
Income tax expense recognised in OCI - -

(b) A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits / (loss) before tax at the
statutory income rate to recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as below:

(Amount in Lakh)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2018 2017

Accounting Profit/{Loss) before tax (705.32) {5.06)
Statutory income tax rate 33.90% 33.90%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (239.10) (1.71)
Temporary differences 15.73 (1.85)
Others 239.10 1.80
Total 15.73 (1.76)

Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average of equity shares outstanding during the year.
(¥ In Lacs except otherwise stated)

. 31st March, 31st March,
Particulars
2018 2017
.|Profit/(loss] attributable to equity shareholders (721.05) {3.30)
ii,|Weighted average number of equity shares 298 298
iir.|Basic & diluted earnings per equity share [ In 3)* (2.42) {0.01)

The financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the Company on 30th May,2018 for issue to the shareholders for their

adoption.

As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 326859E

s/d
(Debasish Ghash)
Partner =
Membership No. 052653

New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

s/d

Rama Shankar Singh
Chief Financial Officer

s/d

Om Pralkiasnh Sralt'ma

Lompany Se

retary

For and on behalf of the Board

Aanee Kumar Lakhotia

s/d

[hrector
~DIN-00357695

s/d
Sunita Palta
Director
DIN-03612793




AAP INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED
AUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
FOR FY 2017-18



D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

[NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
IO THE MEMBERS OF AAP INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of AAP INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED( the
Company ). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes inEquity and a
summary ol significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

VANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lo Company's Board ol Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(i Act”) with respect (o the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view ol the
financial position. financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principics
ceneraliv aceepted in India. including the Accounting Standards specified under Scction 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
ol the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
i accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding ol the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting Irauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policics: making judgments
and ostimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal* linancial
contrals. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are frec from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our cesponsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required 1o be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

we conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) ol the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

7/1. Fern Road, 1st Floor, Kolkata-700019, Emajl : cad
, : gassoclates@gmail.com, Ph :
Mobile: +91 9830846537 / 9051747507 / 983640#:44 / M ¢ (033 24611825,



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Ind AS financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaidlnd AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

|. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
[ndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;



d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

¢. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31¥March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

[. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

e

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts;

til. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred 1o in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors® Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s AAPInfrastructures Limitedfor the year
ended 31 March 2018, we report that;

1.

Vi,

Vil

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
ol lixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physically verified wherever practicable on a phased manner by the management/
internal auditors and the reconciliation of the quantities with the book records has been done on continuous basis.
As informed no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢ According to the inlormation and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination ol the records of the
Company. the title deeds of immovable propetties are held in the name of the Company.

Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
vear under audit, hence, clause (i) of the order is not applicable to the company

n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the tegister maintained under section 189 of the Cotpanies Act, 2013, Thus, patagraph 3(iii) of the
Order 1s not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules {ramed there under with regard to
deposits aceepted lrom the public during the year.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

(a) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis ol our examination of the records ol the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duly of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritiesexcepr
Jor Tax deducted at Source by them which are not deposited.



Vil

N

xil,

Nil!

NIV,

XV

NV

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payble in respect of income tax.

sales tlax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31" March,
2018lor a period of more than six months from the date they became payble.

According o the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not detaulted in
repayment of duces to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company cxamined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company. the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

I our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company. transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Ind AS financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company. the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859F

s/d

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May. 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulutory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s AAPInfrastructures Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s AAPInfrastructuresLimited (“the
Company™) as of 31"March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Fhe Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal {inancial controls basced
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
inancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities
nclude the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cifeciively tor ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence o company s
policies. the saleguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and
conmpleteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required
under the Act,

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
bused on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issucd by
ICATand deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issucd
by 1CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
linuncial reporting was cstablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
conwrols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness cxists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating elfectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal [inancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
vontzol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS Tinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usc.
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial
sltatements.

[
~—

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because ol the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to crror or
fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal [inancial controls over
finaneial reporting to future periods are subject (o the risk that the internal financial control over financial



reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as al
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial veporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over IFinancial Reporting issued by [CALL

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



|Dated : May 30th, 2018

AAP Infrastructure Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018
(Rs in Lakh)
) As on 31st March, | As on 31st March,
Particulars Note No 2018 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Other Intangible assets 4 - 2,139.44
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 5 B 1,594.33
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 27.54 28.28
(ii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 7 75.36 66.99
(iii) Others 8 135.10 128.22
(b) Other current assets 9 - 0.52
TOTAL ASSETS 238.00 3,957.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY 3
(a) Equity share capital 10 1,200.00 1,200.00
(b) Other equity 11 -2,733.21 1,172.21
LIABILITIES
(1) Non current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings < b
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 12 - 2.74
(2) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(ii) Trade payables 13 72.62 62.77
(iif) Other financial liability 14 1,615.05 1,435.72
(b) Other current liabilites 15 8.13 7.73
(c) Current Tax Liabilties (net) 16 75.41 76.61
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 238.00 3,957.79
Significant Accounting Policies and other accompanying notes (1- 31) are in intergral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board
For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N0.326859E
s/d s/d
(Debasish Ghosh) (Sudhanshu Chaturvedi)
Partner Director
Membership No. 052653 DIN-03118327
s/d
s/d (Prakash)
Place : New Delhi {Ankit Jhawar) Director
Chief Financial Officer DIN-07305062




AAP Infrastructure Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March,2018

. As on 31st March, | As on 31st March,
Particulars Note No 2018 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operation 17 34.31 1,345.95
Other income 18 6.70 16.83
(A) TOTAL INCOME 41.01 1,362.79
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed .
Employee benefits expense 19 7.02 7.18
Finance costs 20 201.14 306.24
Depreciation and amortisation expense (Ammortisation of Intangible Assets) 29.54 790.29
Other expenses 21 7.25 278.11
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 244.95 1,381.81
(C) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B) -203.93 -19.03
(D) Exceptional Items 22 3,704.23 =
(E) Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (A-B-D) -3,908.17 -19.03
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 0.12
(2) Income Tax for earlier years = =
(3) Deferred Tax -2.74 -6.79
Total Profit/(Loss) for the period (E) -3,905.43 -12.36
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =
i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
Total Other Comprehensive Income (i+ii) (F) - -
Total INCOME (E+F) -3,905.43 -12.36
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs.)
Basic and Diluted 29 -32.55 -0.10

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistrationNo0.326859E

s/d
{Debasish Ghwsh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

Significant Accounting Policies and other accompanying notes (1- 31} are in intergral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

(Sudhanshu Chaturvedi)
Director
DIN-03118327

s/d sid
(Ankit Jhawar) (Prakash)
Chief Financial Officer Director

DIN-07305062




AAP Infrastructure Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

Equity Share Capital

Particulars {Rs in Lakh)
Balance as on April 1, 2016 1,200
Add: Shares issued during the year 2016-17 =
Balance as on March 31, 2017 1,200
Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year 2017-18 =
Balance as on March 31, 2018 1,200
Other equity
[Rsin Lakh)
Reserve and Surplus
Particulars Total
General Reserve Retal_ned
Earnings
Balance as on March 31, 2017 = 1,172.21 1,172.21
Profit for the year -3,905.43 -3.905.43
Balance as on March 31, 2018 -2,733.21 -2,733.21

Refer note 11 for nature and purpose of reserves

Significant Accounting Policies and other accompanying notes (1- 31) are in intergral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regjstration N¢326859E

s/d
(Debisish Ghashy
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d
(Sudhanshu Chaturvedi)
Director
DIN-03118327

s/d
s/d {Prakash)
(Ankit Jhawar) Pirector

Chief Financial Officer DIN-07305062




AAP INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before tax & extraordinary items -203.93 -19.03
Adjusted for:

Depreciation/amortisation expenses 29.54 790.29

Interest on fixed deposit -6.70 -16.83

Finance cost 201.14 223.98 306.24 1,079.70
Operating profit before working capital changes 20.05 1,060.67
Adjusted for:

(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets -15.24 -1,282.87

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 0.52 0.05

Increase / (Decrease) in trade paybles 9.85 25.39

Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 179.33 212.35

Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities 0.40 -1.79

Cash generated from operations 194.91 13.80
Less: Direct taxes paid 1.20 1.46
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 193.71 12.34

B. Cash flow from financing activities

(Repayments) / Proceeds of term loan - -922.08

Interest on fixed deposit 6.70 16.83

Interest on term loan -201.14 -298.64

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities -194.44 -1,203.89
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) -0.73 -1,191.54
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalent 28.27 1,219.81
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalent {refer note 6) 27.54 28.27

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Notes:

flows.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d
(Debasish Ghosh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653 s/d
Place : New Delhi Ankit Jhawar
Dated : May 30th, 2018 Chief Financial Officer

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash

For and on behalf of the Board

3

s/d

(Sudhanshu Chaturvedi)
Director
DIN-03118327

s/d
{Prakash)
Director
DIN-07305062




AAP INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

1. Corporate Information
AAP Infrastructure Limited (or ‘the Company'} is a company incorporated and domiciled in India headquartered in Delhi with a registered office at Divine

Bliss, 1st Floor, 2/3, Judges Court Road Kolkata, West Bengal 700027.
Description of Business:

Road on DBFOT (Design,Build, Finance, Operate &Transfer) basis:

A 'Concession Agreement’ entered into between MBL Infrastructures Ltd., AAP Infrastructure Ltd. (Jointly termed as “concessionaire”) and MP Road
Development Corporation Ltd. (MPRDC) (formerly Madhya Pradesh Rajya Setu Nirman Nigam Limited) conferred the rights of concession of 114 km road,
to implement the project and recover the project cost, through levy of toll revenue over the toll period commencing from the date of start upto a period of]
5440 days.The concessionaire is required to transfer the project asset to MPRDC in accordance with the said concession agreement at the end of]
concession period. MPRDC by order No. 4313/ MPRDC/BOT/10/Maint./2017 dated 08th June 2017 suspended the right to collect toll and by order No.
20177 /Seoni-Balaghat-Gondia Road/BOT/MPRDC/2017 Bhopal dated 23/02/2018 terminated the concession agreement.

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2016 and therefore Ind AS issued, notified and
made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of preparation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting Standards as
prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable (Previous GAAP) to the
company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted/restated in compliance to Ind AS.

2.2 Recent accounting Pronouncements

Ind AS 115
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules”). As

per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18, “Revenue”
and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recognised when (or as] an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the
new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

» Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
« Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is
expected to be insignificant”

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3. 1.Basis of Prepration

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets and Liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out n IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule
111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

‘I'he Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated.
Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for
such measurement:

(a) Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability
() Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data.

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair
value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.




AAP INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

3.2 Property Plant & Equipment:

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April
2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,plant and equipment.

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of]
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

3.3 Intangible Asset
The company initially recognises the intangible asset at Cost and subsequently meaure the intangible asset at its cost less accumulated amortisation

and any impairment losses by following the Cost model as per Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets” . During the construction phase of the arrangement the
company asset is classified as a right to receive a licence to charge users of the infrastructure. The company estimates the fair value of its
consideration received or receivable as equal to the forecast construction costs .

In accordance with Ind AS 38, Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the period in which it is expected
to be available for use by the company.

3.4 Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate any impairment,
recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets
either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair value less
cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted to their present
value at appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting period the impairment
loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its
recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in

prior years.
3.6 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within the operating cycle of the company
or otherwise these are classified as non-current.
The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial instruments are
determined on initial recognition.
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and cash
gtjuivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are

measured at amortized cost.
The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR]

method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or received, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective 15
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates
1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists ol consideration
for the time value of money and associated credit risk




AAP INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss
Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as Fair Value
through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that linancial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected creditlosses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are 1ot
recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is

probable.

3.8 Service Concession Arangements
The Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement to the extent it has a right to charge for use of the concession
infrastructure, The fair value, at the time of initial recognitions of such an intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or
upgrade services in a service concession arrangement, is regarded to be its cost, Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets is measured at

cost, less any accumulated amortisations and accumulated impairment losses.

3.9 Revenue recognition
(i) Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards are transferred as per terms and no uncertainity exists regarding the amount of the

consideration that will be derived from the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment.
(it) In respect of construction/ project related activity, the Company follows percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is determined by
survey of work performed / physical measurement of work actually completed at the balance sheet date taking into account contractual price/ unit rates

and revistion thereto.
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3.10 Interest Income
Interest has been accounted using effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted / settled.

3.11 Taxes on Income
Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax
Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using

the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary Differences between the carrying amount of assets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit as well as for unused tax losses or credits.
In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are also
recognized on temporary differences arising from business combinations except to the extent they arise from goodwill that is not taken into account for
tax purposes.

Deferred taxes are calculated at the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax
is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income in equity, in
which case the corresponding deferred tax is also recognized directly in equity.

3.12 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get

ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.13 Employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc, and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the period in

which the employee renders related service.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, expected cost of completion of contracts, provision for
rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results

are’known.
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(Rs in Lakh)
Description Asat31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
4  Other Intangible Assets
Carriage Ways*
Opening Cost/Deemed Cost 4,275.75 4,275.75
Additions -
Deletion -
Adustment -4,275.75 =
Closing Cost - 4,275.75
Opening Accumulated amortization 2,136.31 1,346.02
Amortization during the year 29.54 790.29
Deletion 2,165.85 -
Closing Accumulated amortization - 2,136.31
Closing Net Carrying Amount = 2,139.44
*Being the right to operate and maintain the highways on Build, Operate and Transfer
5 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good* - 1,594.33
- 1,594.33
*The above balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential impact thereof.
6  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks 11.32 13.12
Cash on hand 0.95 0.80
Fixed deposits of maturity less than 3 months with banks (refer notes 6.1) 15.27 14.36
27.54 28.28
6.1 Fixed deposits pledged with others as security deposit* 90.64 Lakh (March 31, 2017: Rs.81.35 Lakh).
7  OTHER BANK BALANCES
Deposits with banks having maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
(refer notes 6.1) 75.36 66.99
75.36 66.99
8 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSET- OTHERS
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security and other deposits 128.74 118.09
Accrued Interest on fixed deposits 6.35 10.13
135.10 128.22
9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses 0.52
- 0.52
10 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1,20,00,000 (March 31, 2017: 1,20,00,000 & March, 2016: 1,20,00,000) equity shares of
*10/- each 1,200.00 1,200.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
1,20,00,000 (March 31, 2017: 1,20,00,000 & March, 2016: 1,20,00,000) equity shares of
*10/- each fully paid up 1,200.00 1,200.00
1,200.00 1,200.00
10.1 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of * 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
10.2 In the event of Liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding .
10.3 100% equity shares are held by MBL Infrastructures Ltd,, the holding company and its nominees.
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(Rsin Lalh)
Description As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
11 OTHEREQUITY
Surplus
Opening balance 1,172.21 1,184.57
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss -3,905.43 -12.36
Retained Earnings -2733.21 1172.21
Total Other Equity -2,733.21 1,172.21
11.1 Refer Statement of Changes in Equity (SoCE) for movement in balances of reserves.
11.2 Retained Earnings generally represent the undistributed profits /amount of accumulated earnings of the Company,
12 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES(NET)
Deferred Tax - 2.74
- 2.74
12.1 The movement in Deferred Tax Liability/{Asset) for March, 2018 is shown hereunder:
2017-18 (Rs in Lakh)
0 . I'{ec(;)gn Recogtrllllsed m Recognised directly
Particulars pening i other B in Profit and Loss Closing balance
balance profit |comprehensive
. Account
or loss income
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets in relation to: =
Deferred Tax Liabilities 2
Difference in carrying value and tax base of 2.74 - = -2.74 =
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 2.74 - = -2.74 =
Deferred Tax Assets 2
Total Deferred Tax Assets = = -
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 2.74 = E -2.74 x
13 TRADE PAYABLES - CURRENT
(A) Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 :
B) Others 72.62 62.77
72.62 62.77
13.1 Disclosure of Trade Payables is based on information available with Company regarding the status of suppliers if any, as defined under
the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006". There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers. There is no
overdue amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date.
13.2 Trade payables are subject to confirmation from certain parties.
14  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 1,302.00 1,372.79
Others 313.05 62.92
1,615.05 1,435.72
14.1 Other Financial Liabilities (Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings) are claims by Bank of Baroda not acknowladged as debt and
provided for on conservatism principle of accouning.
15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Statutory dues payable 8.13 7.73
8.13 7.73
16 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Provision for taxation (refer note 16.1) 75.41 76.61
75.41 76.61
16.1 Provision for tax of * 137.78 Lakh (March 31, 2017: Rs.137.78) is net of advance tax * 62.35 Lakh {March 31, 2017 Rs. 61.17lakh)
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(%X in Lakh
For the year For the year
Description ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
User fee (toll) 34.31 1,345.95
34.31 1,345.95
18 OTHER INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits 6.70 16.83
6.70 16.83
19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and bonus 7.02 7.18
7.02 7.18
20 FINANCE COSTS
Interest on loan 201.14 298.64
Other Borrowing Cost = 7.59
201.14 306.24
21 OTHER EXPENSES
Insurance 0.52 1.92
Periodical road maintenance expense 208.50
Routine maintenance expense - 26.92
Project monitoring fee 3.69 14.75
Project management fee 0.34 13.46
Payments to auditor
Statutory audit - 0.23
Tax audit 0.20 0.12
Internal audit 0.03
Director Sitting Fee - 0.40
Legal and professional fees 0.12 0.83
Miscellaneous expenses 2.37 10.96
7.25 278.11
22 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Loss due to termination of concession 3,704.23
3,704.23
23 Disclosure of related parties / related party transactions:

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on "Related parties disclosures”, name of the related party, related party
relationship, transaction and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have

taken place during the reporting period are:

A Related party disclosures

Relationship
Holding Company

Key Management Personnel

Name of the related party
MBL Infrastructures Limited

Sudhanshu Chaturvedi (Director)

Prakash (Director)
Ankit Jhawar (Chief Financial Officer)

B Transactions carried out with related parties referred in "A" above, in ordinary course of business
(¥ in Lakh]
Enterprises owned or
Holding Company significantly influenced by key Key Management Personnel
. management personnel or
Nature of Transactions . .
their relatives
“31stMarch | 31stMarch | 31st March 31st March 31st March
17

2018 2017 2018 |>1stMarch20 2018 2017
Operation and Maintenance
charges paid
MBL Infrastructures Limited 235.42 E
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24

-

25

26

27

. Market risk

Contingent liabilities
(i) There is a demand of stamp duty of * 120 Lakh on the BOT agreement. The company has challenged the said levy of stamp duty and also contended

that MPRDC will be liable to reimburse the said levy in terms of the concession agreement in the event the case is decided against the company. The
company has preferred SLP with the Hon'ble Supreme Court against the order of Hon'ble High Court of MP, Jabalpur holding the levy of stamp duty on

the BOT Agreement.

(Rs in Lakh)
2017-18 2016-17
(ii) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 5.00 5.00

MPRDC by order No. 4313/ MPRDC/BOT/10/Maint./2017 dated 08th June 2017 suspended the right to collect toll and by order No. 20177 /Seoni-Balaghat-
Gondia Road/BOT/MPRDC/2017 Bhopal dated 23/02/2018 terminated the concession agreement. Differences and disputes have arisen between the
authority and the concessioner including period of concession agreement, change of scope, increase in project cost etc.The company has invoked
arbitration.The claims shall be accounted for on certainty of their realization.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal

to the amount at which they are stated and all the known liabilities have been provided for.
The Company operates in only one segment, namely “Toll Roads” hence there are no reportable segments under Ind AS-108 ‘Segment Reporting’. Hence,

separate business segment information is not applicable.

Financial risk management, objective and policies
The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows :-
As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017
Particulars Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount Amount

Financial Asset {Current and Non Current)*
At Ammortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27.54 27.54 28.28 28.28
Other Bank Balances 75.36 75.36 66.99 66.99
Other Financial Assets 135.10 135.10 128.22 128.22
Financial Liabilities (Current and Non-Current)*
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings - - - =
Trade Payables 72.62 72.62 62.77 62.77
Other Financial Liabilities 1,615.05 1,615.05 1,435.72 1,435.72

* Both financial asset and financial liability are measured using Level 1 inputs

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks - credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The risks are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:

Credit risk
The company has no debt outstanding from its customere and as such there is no exposure to the credit risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

(a) Interestrate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In

order to optimize the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs
a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of the fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its

total portfolio.

(i) The exposure of group borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Variable rate borrowings 1,302.00 1,372.79

Fixed rate borrowings - -
Total borrowings 1,302.00 1,372.79
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(ii) Sensitivity

Profit/loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars Increase/ Decrease in Basis Impact on Profit before Tax
March 31,
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017 |March 31,2018 2017
Borrowings +50 +50 -6.51 -6.86
-50 - 50 6.51 6.86
(b) Price Risk

11

IV Capital risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and safeguard continuity, maintain a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The
Company’s overall strategy continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year. The Company sets the amount of
capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments which include capital
and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other non-current borrowings.
The Company’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company monitors capital on the basis of|
the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debts are non-current and current debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents.

The company also monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital. The gearing ratio is as follows:

The company does not have any investments in equity and commodity at the current year end and previous year. Therefore the company

is not exposed to price risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's
objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company's management is responsible
for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

(Rs in Lakh)
As at March 31, 2018 Carrying On Demand Less than More than one Total
Amount One Year year
Interest bearing borrowings 1302.00 : 130200 = 1,302.00
(including current maturity)
Trade Payables 72.62 - 72.62 72.62
Other Financial Liabilities 313.05 - 313.05 313.05
Total 1.687.67 = 1,687.67 - 1,687.67
As at March 31, 2017 Carrying On Demand Lessthan || More than one Total
Amount One Year vear
IflteresF bearing borrownr.lgs 1372.79 1.372.79 . 1,372.79
(including current maturity)
Trade Payables 62.77 62.77 62.77
Other Financial Liabilities 62.92 62.92 = 62.92
Total 1,498.49 1,498.49 * 1,498.49

[Rs in Lakh)
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2018 |March 31, 2017

Debt (Borrowings from Banks & Financial Institution) 1,302.00 1,372.79
Cash & bank balances 27.54 28.28
Net Debt(net of cash and cash equivalent) 1,274.45 1,344.52
Total Equity -1,533.21 2,372.21
Capital and net debt -258.76 3,716.73
Net debt to equity ratio (Gearing Ratio) -492.53% 36.17%

Notes-
(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings including current maturities

(ii) Total erpuily [as shown in balance shitet] includes issued capital and all other equity reserves.
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28 Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(Rs In Lacs except otherwise stated)

31st March, 2018

31st March, 2017

Particulars
i.|Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders -3,905.43 -12.36
1i.|Weighted average number of equity shares 120 120
iii.|Basic & diluted earnings per equity share ( In Rs) -32.55 -0.10
29 Tax Expense
(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:
[Rs in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March, 2018 March, 2017
(i) [Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax 0.12
Income Tax for earlier years - =
Deferred Tax -2.74 -6.79
-2.74 -6.67

Total Income tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

{ii)|Income tax expense recognised in OCI

Deferred tax expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense recognised in OCI

(b) A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits / (loss) before tax at the statutory income rate to recognised income

tax expense for the year indicated are as below:

(Rs in Lakh)

Particulars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March, 2018 March, 2017
Accounting Profit/(Loss) before tax -203.93 -19.03
Statutory income tax rate 33.90% 33.90%
Tax at statutory income tax rate -69.13 -6.45
Temporary differences -2.74 -6.79
Others 69.13 6.57
Total -2.74 -6.67

30 Segment Reporting

The company's operations operations consists "Construction/Project Activities” and there are no other reportable segment under Ind AS-108 as

identified by the Chief operating Officer of the company.

31 These financial statements have been approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated May 30th, 2018 fur

issue to the shareholders for their adoption.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
For D Ghosh & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d

(Debasish Ghosli)
Partner
Membership No. 052653

New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

(Sudhanshu Chaturvedi)

s/d
Ankit Jhawar
Chief Financial Officer

s/d

Director
DIN-03118327

s/d
E: [Prakash)
Director

\'_1

DIN-07305062
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D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES
\ ~ | Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPAN Y
LIMITTEDC the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and 1Loss
tneluding Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes
Ak uity and assummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fhe Company™s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013
e ActT with respect to the preparation of these Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Hitacial posttion. tinancial performance and cash flows of the Compuny in accordance with the accounting principles
pencrully aceepted i India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7
o the Coipanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance ol adéquate accounting records
A actordanee with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgmients
did eslimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance ol adequate internal financiai
contzals. that were operating clfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant 1o
e preparation dand presentation of the Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view and are frec from eyl
milsstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUBITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind ASfinancial statements based on our audit.

We bave ke into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and mauers which are
required o be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

W canducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Stindards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurarce
about whether the fnancial statements are free from material misstatement,

7il, Fern Rouad, Ist Floor, Kolkata-700019, Email ¢ cadgussociates@gmail.com, Phone ¢ (033} 24611525,

Mobile: +91 9530846537 !/ 90K1747307 / QBIGpbdd OR3LL57 Hus



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Ind ASfinancial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind ASfinancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;



e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30™ day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT

COMPANY LIMITEDf{or the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physically verified wherever practicable on a phased manner by the management/
internal auditors and the reconciliation of the quantities with the book records has been done on continuous basis.
As informed no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
year under audit, hence, clause (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard to

deposits accepted from the public during the year.

vi. The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritiesexcept
Jor Tax deducted at Source by them which are not deposited.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payble in respect of income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31* March,
2018for a period of more than six months from the date they became payble.



viii.

iX.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVI1.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d

Debasish Ghosh
~  Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30™ day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s MBL HIGHWAY
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s MBL HIGHWAY
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31¥March 2018 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICATI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
__polig;_ié's:“t}ic' ‘safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
" completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Act.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over



financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over



financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30™ day of May, 2018



MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018

Rs In Lakh
Particulars Note No As on 31st March, 2018 As on 31st March, 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Intangible Assets under development 4 - 15,233.52
(b) Other non-current assets 5 0.22 0.22
(c) Current tax assets (net) 6 14.65 14.65
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1.34 1.39
(ii) Others 8 39.98 39.98
(b) Other current assets 9 27.98 27.84
TOTAL ASSETS 84.16 15,317.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 10 5,110.00 5,110.00
(b} Other equity 11 -15,833.78 2
LIABILITIES
(1) Non current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings 12 6,595.47 7,080.38
(2) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Trade payables 13 130.93 130.93
(ii) Other financial liability 14 3,980.95 2,895.77
(b) Other current liabilites 15 100.58 100.51
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 84.16 15,317.59

As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N0.326859E

s/d
(Debasish Ghosh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

s/d
Jai Sifigh'Shekhawat
Chi e__U—inm_lc'Fz{. Officer

/d
Saltm_,u‘aétfl(aur
Campany Secretary

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 27) form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

1

s/d

Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/d
Bhagwan Singh Duggal

Director
DIN-06634772




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March,2018

Rs In Lakh
Particulars Note No As on 31st March, 2018 | Ason 31st March, 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operation
Other income
(A) TOTAL INCOME .
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed -
Employee benefits expense 16 0.26
Finance costs 17 153.44 E
Depreciation and amortisation expense -
Other expenses 18 137.50
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 291.20
(C) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B} (291.20) =
{D) Exceptional Items 19 15,542.58 =
(E) Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (C-D) (15.833.78) =
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax =
(2) Income Tax for earlier years B
(3) Deferred Tax -
Total Profit/{Loss) for the period (E) (15,833.78) =
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :
i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income (i+ii) (F)
Total INCOME (E+F) (15,833.78)
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs.)
Basic and Diluted 25 (30.99)

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d

(Debasish Ghosh)
Partner

Membership No. 052653

Place : New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 27) form an integral part of the financial statements.

s/d

Jai Singh Shekhawat
Chief Finangeial Officer

s/d
Sapm‘qe’{ Kaur
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan 'Singh Duggal
Director
DIN-06634772




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Rupees In Lakhs

Balance as on March 31, 2017

5,110.00

Add: Changes during the year 2017-18

Balance as on March 31, 2018

5.110.00

Other equity

(Rs in Lakh)

Particulars

Reserve and Surplus Total

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Balance as on March 31, 2017

Profit for the year

Amount utlized for issue of Bonus shares

(15,833.78) (15,833.78)

Dividend payments including dividend distribution tax

Transfer from retained earnings

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit Plans

Balance as on March 31,2018

(15.833.78) (15,833.78)

Refer note 11 for nature and purpose of reserves

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N0.326859E

s/d
(Débasish Ghosh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

s/d

Jai Sihgh Shékhawat
Chiel Finaneial Officer

s/id

SanmbetKaur
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d
Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Director
DIN-06634772




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rs In Lakh
For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax & extraordinary items (291.20)

Adjusted for :

Depreciation/amortisation expenses =

Interest on fixed deposit =

Finance cost 153.44

Operating profit before working capital changes: (137.76)

Adjusted for:

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 931.81 421.01

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables = b

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (0.13)

(Increase) / Decrease in short term loans & advances 931.67 421.01

Less : Direct taxes paid - -

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 793.91 421.01
B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Intangible assets under development (309.06) 25891

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (309.06) 258.91
C. Cash flow from financing activities:

(Repayments) / Proceeds of secured loan (484.90) (680.57)

(Repayments) / Proceeds of short term borrowings - (484.90) = (680.57)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (484.90) (680.57)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.05) (0.65)

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents 1.39 2.05

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents (refer note 7) 1.34 1.39

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Notes:

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash

flows.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our audit report of even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

, s/d
(Debasish-Ghosh) s/d
Partner Jai Singh Shekhawat
Membership No. 052653 Chief Financial Officer
s/d
Place: New Delhi S;l_qméut‘f(aur

Dated: May 30th, 2018 Company Secretary o

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d )
Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/d
Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Director
DIN-06634772




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

1. Corporate Information

MBL Highway Development Company Limited (or ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the provisions of companies Act applicable in India and a registered office at Baani Corporate One Tower, Suite No. 303 3rd Floor, Plot No. 5,
Dist. Commercial Centre, Jasola New Delhi 110076

Description of Business:

Road on DBFOT (Design,Build, Finance, Operate &Transfer) basis:

A ‘Concession Agreement’ entered into between MBL Highway Development Company Ltd. (termed as “concessionaire”) and MP Road
Development Corporation on 9.09.2011, conferred the rights of concession of 75.600 km road, to implement the project and recover the
project cost, through levy of toll revenue over the toll period commencing from the date of start upto a period of 30 years (including
construction period of 1.5 years). The concessionaire is required to transfer the project asset to MPRDC in accordance with the said concession
agreement at the end of concession period. The said project has been terminated by MPRDC by order No. MPRDC/BOT/S-K/2016/13233 dated
18th November, 2016. The company has invoked arbitration.

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with effect from April 1, 2016 and therefore Ind AS
issued, notified and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of preparation of these
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting
Standards as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable
(Previous GAAP) to the company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted/restated in compliance to Ind AS.

2.2 Recent accounting Pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“"MCA"")
has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the
financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant.”

Ind AS 115
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended

rules”). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind
AS 18, "Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should he
recognised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled.
Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from the entity’s contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

* Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up
approach)
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115
is expected to be insignificant”




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3. 1.Basis of Prepration
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments

that are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets and Liabilities
have been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs
employed for such measurement:

(a) Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.

(c) Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data.

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has
overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation
adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.

3.2 Property Plant & Equipment:
On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant and equipment recognised as at 1
April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,plant and equipment.

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

3.3 Intangible Asset
The company initially recognises the intangible asset at Cost and subsequently meaure the intangible asset at its cost less accumulated

amortisation and any impairment losses by following the Cost model as per Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets” . During the construction phase of]
the arrangement the company asset is classified as a right to receive a licence to charge users of the infrastructure. The company
estimates the fair value of its consideration received or receivable as equal to the forecast construction costs.

In accordance with Ind AS 38, Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the
period in which it is expected to be available for use by the company.

3.4 Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount af|

the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets
Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate any
impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the
carrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of assets’ fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use
of the assets are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate.
Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting period the
impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been

recognized for the asset in prior years.




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

3.6 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within the operating cycle of
the company or otherwise these are classified as non-current.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial
instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding are measured at amortized cost.

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or received,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists of|
consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss
Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as
IFair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.
However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence

indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.
However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Profit

and Loss.

3.7 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized or disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

3.8 Service Concession Arangements
The Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement to the extent it has a right to charge for use of the
concession infrastructure. The fair value, at the time of initial recognitions of such an intangible asset received as consideration for pl‘uv'tding
construction or upgrade services in a service concession arrangement, is regarded to be its cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
intangible assets is measured at cost, less any accumulated amortisations and accumulated impairment losses.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances,
expected cost of completion of contracts, provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual
results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known.




MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2018

Rs In Lakh
i As at March
Particulars As at March 31,2018 31,2017
INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Payment for development charges 10,201.16
Design & survey charges - 127.21
Bank charges - 24.22
Filing fees 0.74
Director's Sitting fees 1.50
Interest on external commercial borrowing = 2,469.10
Interest received on fixed deposits -59.01
Insurance = 34.10
Preliminary expenses written off 34.31
Legal & professional fees 13.70
Payment to auditor =
Statutory audit fee 1.70
Internal audit fee = 013
Certification Charges 0.10
Independent engineer fee - 217.00
Salary & wages 71.99
Miscellaneous expenses = 45.47
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 2,050.12
- 15,233.52
Non- Current Financial Assets- Other Financial Assets
Carried at amortised cost
Deposits with Banks having maturity more than 12 months* 0.22 0.22
0.22 0.22
Current Tax Asset
Capital Advances -
Advances other than capital advances
(i) Advance TDS 14.65 14.65
14.65 14.65
Current Financial Assets-Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks 0.34 1.39
Cash on hand 1.00 *
1.34 1.39
Current Financial Assets-Others
Unsecured Considered Good unless otherwise stated
Others 39.98 39.98
39.98 39.98
The above balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential impact thereof.
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses -
Other Advances * 27.98 27.84
27.98 27.84

*Advance against materials, services are suhject to confirmations from certain parties.
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Rs In Lakh
Particul As at March As at March
articwiars 31,2018 31,2017
10  Equity Share Capital
Authorised Shares
5,11,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 5,11,00,000 & April 1, 2015: 5,11,00,000)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 5110.00 5110.00
5,110.00 5,110.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Shares
5,11,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 5,11,00,000 & April 1, 2015: 5,11,00,000)
. 5,110.
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each fully paid up >110.00 110.00
5,110.00 5,110.00
10.1  The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share.
10.2 The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders.
10.3  Inthe event of Liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding .
10.4 100% equity shares are held by MBL Infrastructures Ltd., the holding company and its nominees.
11  OTHEREQUITY
Surplus
Opening balance - =
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss -15,833.78
Retained Earnings -15,833.78
Total Other Equity -15,833.78 -
* Refer Statement of Changes in Equity (SoCE) for movement in balances of reserves.
12 Non Current Financial Liability - Borrowings
Secured Term Loan
External Commercial Borrowings
-From Bank 6,h95.47 7.080.38
TOTAL 6,595.47 7,080.38
12.1  External commercial borrowing (ECB) availed by the company from a bank is secured by following:
i) First charge on all the movable & immovable assets
ii) First charge on escrow account.
iii) Firstcharge onintangible assets.
iv) Pledge of 30% equity shares of the company held by
122 Maturity profile of long term borrowings are as set out

Particulars Rate of Interest (%) * within 1 year 1102 years Zto 3 vears

beyond 3 years

From a bank 5.33 1,352.92 G734 Hl6.H6

5,561.27

~ Includes interest rates that are linked to base rates of the respective lender, which may vary accordingly.
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Rs In Lakh
13 Current Financial Liability -Trade Payables
Acceptences
A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises -
Development Act, 2006
B)Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises under Micro, Small 130.93 130.93
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
TOTAL 130.93 130.93
131 Disclosure of Trade Payables is based on information available with Company regarding the status of suppliers if any, as defined
) under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006". There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers.
There is no overdue amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date.
13.2  Balances are subject to confirmations/reconciliations and consequential impact thereof.
14  Current Financial Liability -Others
Current maturity of Long Term Debt
-Bank Overdraft 1717 13.65
-From Banks 1,352.92 842.90
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 138.06 509.66
Others 2,472.81 1,529.57
TOTAL 3,980.95 2,895.77
15  Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 100.58 100.51
TOTAL 100.58 100.51
15.1 Includes creditor for expenses etc.
16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and bonus 0.26 -
0.26 =
17  FINANCE COSTS
Interest on loan 153.44 £
Other Borrowing Cost
153.44 -
18 OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on Currency Transaction & Translation 136.47
Payments to auditor
Statutory audit 0.25 -
Professional fees 0.75 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.03 -
137.50 -
19  EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Loss due to termination of concession 15,542.58
15,542.58 -
20  Segment Reporting

The company's operation predominantly consist of infrastructure development, construction and operation and this is its
operating business segment and all other activities revolve around the main activity. Accordingly, there being no other reportable
segment separate disclosures as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” have not been made
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21 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related parties disclosures , name of the related party, related party relationship,
transaction and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have taken place during the

reporting period are:

A. Related party disclosures

Relationship Name of the related party
Holding company MBL Infrastructures Limited
Key Managerial Personnel Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia (Director)

Ashwini Kumar Singh (Director)
Jai Singh Shekhawat (Chief Financial Officer)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key - MBL (MP) Toll Road Co. Ltd.
management personnel or their relatives

- MBL A Capital Limited

- MBL Projects Limited

B. Transactions carried out with the related party referred in "A" above, in the ordinary course of business

A. Transactions

Rs In Lakh
Enterprises owned or significantly
Holding Company influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives
Particulars
31st March | 31st March
2018 2017 31st March 2018|31st March 2017
Expenses paid
MBL A Capital Limited 3 - 3.59 -
MBL Projects Limited - - 0.89 #
B. Outstanding Balance
Rs In Lakh
Enterprises Owned Or
. Significantly influenced by .
Key M 1P 1
Holding Company key Management personnel ey Managerial Personne
Particulars or their relatives
31st March | 31stMarch | 31st March | 31st March
2018|31st March 2017
2018 2017 2018 2017  |31stMarch 31stMarc
Other Liabilities
MBL (MP) Toll Road Co. Limited. - - 3.20
MBL A Capital\ Limited - - 3.59 -
MBL Projects Limited - - 0.89
MBL Infrastructures Limited 1,512.84 1,473.77

22 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk Management
The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal capital structure

to reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
on capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of following gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus debt.

Rs In Lakh
Particulars As at As at
B | March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
Debt [Borrowings_ﬁ'om Banks & Financial Institution) ' B 7.965.56 7,936.92
Cash & bank balances 1.34 1.39
Net Debt 7,964.21 7,935.53
Total Equity 5,110.00 5,110.00
Net debt to debt and equity ratio (Gearing Ratio) 155.86% 155.29%
Notes- k

(i) Debtis defined as long-term and short-term borrowings including current maturities as described in notes 12
(i) Total equity (as shown in balance sheet) includes issued capital and all other equity reserves, .

—
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a)

* Both financial asset and financial liability are measured using Level Il inputs

b)
i)

ii)

iii)

25

Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2018 2017

Financial Asset
Measured at amortised cost*
Trade receivables = —
Other Financial Assets 39.98 39.98
Cash and Bank Balances 1.34 1.39
Total Financial Assets 41.32 41.37
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost*
Borrowings 6,595.47 7,080.38
Trade payables 130.93 130.93
Other Financial Liabilities 3.980.95 2,895.77
Total Financial Liabilities 10,707.35 10,107.08

Fair Value Technique
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, current trade payables, current financial liabilities and borrowings approximate
their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The Board considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised at cost/amortised cost in the financial statements approximates their fair values.

Long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at short intervals. Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings
approximates their carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value subject to adjustments made for transaction cost.

Financial Risk Management
The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these

financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations. The Company principal financial asset includes loan , trade and ather
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations.

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investinents, and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. In order to optimize the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest
rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of the fixed rate and

floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio .

(i) The exposure of borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
7,965.56 7.936.92

Variable rate borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings

7,965.56 7,936.92

Total borrowings

(ii) Sensitivity
Profit/loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

) Increase/ Decrease in Basis Impact on Profit before Tax
Particulars Points
: March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 March 31,2017
Borrowings +50 +50 -39.83 -39.68
-50 39.83 39.08
y /o b PN
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(b) Foreign Currency Risk
The company does not have any significant transaction in foreign currency except foreign currency ECB loan .There are no outstanding

Derivative contracts as on 31st March 2018 however the company have unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31st march,2018.

Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis has been performed on the foreign currency exposures in the company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at the reporting date i.e. 31st March 2018, net of related foreign exchange contracts.

The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due to Changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities are given below:

Foreign Exchange Risk And Sensitivity (Un hedged) (Rs In Lacs)
Increase/ Decrease in Basis Impact on Profit before Tax
Particulars Points
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 March 31, 2017
Borrowings +50 +50 -39.83 -39.68
-50 -50 39.83 39.68

The assumed movement in exchange rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market conditions.

Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit and Loss (In Lakhs)

For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Net foreign exchange (gain) / losses 136.47 (178.79)
TOTAL 136.47 (178.79)

(c) The company does not have any investments in equity and commodity at the current year end and previous year. Therefore the company is
not exposed to price risk.

Credit risk

The company has no debt outstanding from its customere and as such there is no exposure to the credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The
Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company's

management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk
are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling, forecast on the basis af

expected cash flows.
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual undiscounted payments:

Asat March 31,2018 Carrying () pemana  Lessthan - More than one Total
Amount One Year yvear
Borrowings 7,965.56 - 1,370.09 6,595.47 7,965.56
Trade Payables 130.93 - 130.93 - 130.93
Other Liabilities 2,010.86 - 2,610.86 2,610.86
Total 10,707.35 - 4,111.88 6,595.47 10,707.35
As at March 31, 2017 Carrying On Demand Less than More than one Total
Amount One Year year
Borrowings 7,936.92 - 856.55 7,080.38 7,936.92
Trade Payables 130.93 - 130.93 - 130.93
Other Liabilities 2,039.23 = 2,039.23 2,039.23
Total 10,107.08 - 3.026.70 7,080.38 10,107.08
Foreign Currency Transactions
Expenses 2017-18 2016-17
Interest Nil 240.62
ECB Repayment Nil 88.01
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MBL HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2018

Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(¥ In Lakh except otherwise stated)

31st March, 31st March,
Particulars 2018 2017
i.|Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders (15,833.78) B
ii.| Weighted average number of equity shares 511 .
ifi. | Basic & diluted earnings per equity share [ In 3)* (30.99) =

The project has been terminated by MPRDC by order No. MPRDC/BOT/S-K/2016/13233 dated 18th November, 2016. The

company has invoked arbitration.

The financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the Company on May 30th, 2018 for issue to the

shareholders for their adoption.

As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d
(DebasishrGhosh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

s/d
Jai Singh Shekhawat
Chief Financial Officer

s/id

SapméetKaur
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Alyanee numar Laknoua

Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan Singh Duggal

Director
DIN-06634772
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D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
PO FHE MEMBERS OF MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have aodited  the accompanying Ind As financial statements of MBI, (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY
LINHEEEDC the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018. the Statement of Profit and 1.oss
Ceeliding Other Comprehensive Income ). the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement ol Changes
Bh and  summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MIANAGEVIENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cumipany s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 201

e At with respeet 1o the preparation of these Ind AShnancial statements that give a true and fair view ol (he
W pasttion. financial performance and cash Nlows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
el accepted m India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7

ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records

accordunee with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevemting an
letecting fuuds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgnients
Wik estiates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal linanciag
contrals. than were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevait i
the preparation and presentation of the Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view and arc frec Irom materi )
Missteenent. whether due (o fraud or error

SAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these Ind ASfinancial statements based on our audit.

W have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matiers which an
required 1o be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

W condueied our uudit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specitied under Section 143(10) of the Act. ‘Thosc
stanidards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance
“houtwhether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

7/1, Fern Road, 1st Floor, Kolkata-700019, Email : cadgassociates@gmail.com, Phone : (033) 24611525,
Mobile: +91 9830846537 / 9051747507 / 9836407444 / 9830567100



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Ind ASfinancial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;



d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind ASfinancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30™ day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY

LIMITEDfor the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Vil.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physically verified wherever practicable on a phased manner by the management/
internal auditors and the reconciliation of the quantities with the book records has been done on continuous basis.
As informed no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
year under audit, hence, clause (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard to
deposits accepted from the public during the year.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritiesexcept
for Tax deducted at Source by them which are not deposited.



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payble in respect of income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31* March,
2018for a period of more than six months from the date they became payble.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

ix. Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the
applicab,l_e accounting standards.

Xiv. Acébrﬁing to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD
COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31¥March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial



controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

__transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial



reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAL

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30"™ day of May, 2018



MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Note No Ason :;(1)slt8March, Ason Z(l)slt7March,
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Other intangible assets 4 2,059.23 2,834.66
(b) Intangible assets under Development =
(c) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 4,438.42 4,045.55
(ii) Others =
(d) Deferred tax assets(net) 13 17.53
(e) Other non current assets =
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 1,309.91 1,075.77
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 13.80 8.09
(iii) Others 8 3.20 0.03
(b) Other current assets 9 0.36 z
TOTAL ASSETS 7,842.45 7,964.10
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 10 1,500.00 1,500.00
(b) Other equity 11 290.86 219.16
LIABILITIES
(1) Non current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings 12 1,611.61 2,408.65
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 13 35,52
(2) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings 14 27.72
(ii) Trade payables 15 1,943.96 1,904.07
(iii) Other financial liability 16 2,427.78 1,776.09
(b) Other current liabilites 17 59.27 58.49
{c) Current Tax Liabilties (net) 18 8.97 34.40
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 7,842.45 7,964.10

Significant Accounting Policies and other accompanying notes (1- 35) are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d

[D't-b‘;jsishw

Partner

Membership No. 052653
New Delhi

Dated : Mayv 30th, 2018

s/id

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

‘Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia

Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan Singh Duggal

Mjay Singh Shekhawat

Chief Financial

Officer

Director
DIN-06634772




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March,2018

(Rs. in Lakh}

Particulars Note No For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operation 19 121.24 66.28
Other income 20 1,044.90 572.88
(A) TOTAL INCOME 1,166.14 639.16
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense 21 11.14 19.62
Finance costs 22 254.02 209.10
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 775.43 154.25
Other expenses 24 101.00 209.54
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 1,141.59 592.51
(C) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B) 24.55 46.65
(D) Exceptional Items
Profit/(Loss) before tax (A-B) 24.55 46.65
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 591 0.02
(3) Deferred Tax (53.05) 16.11

Total Profit/(Loss) for the period ( C) 71.69 30.52
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -

i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (D=i+ii) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period(C+D) 71.69 30.52
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs.) 31 0.48 0.20
(Basic & Diluted)

Significant Accounting Policies and other accompanying notes (1- 35) are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Np.326859E

s/d
‘II:I/( i i shi}—"
(Pehasish ( i|;,l,\.}
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

s/d

Vijay Singh shekhawat
Chief Financial Officer

For and ontbehalfofthe Board

s/id

Anfanee Kumar Laknota

Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan Singh Duggal

Director
DIN-06634772




Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

A

MBL (MP) Toll Road Company Limited

Equity Share Capital

Particulars {Rs in Lakh)
Balance as on April 1, 2016 1,500.00
Add: Changes during the year 2016-17 =
Balance as on March 31, 2017 1,500.00
Add: Changes during the year 2017-18 =
Balance as on March 31, 2018 1,500.00

Other equity

(Rs in Lakh)

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance as on April 1,2016 188.64 188.64
Profit for the year 30.52 30.52
Balance as on March 31, 2017 219.16 219.16
Profit for the year 71.69 71.69
Balance as on March 31,2018 290.86 290.86

Refer note 11 for nature and purpose of reserves

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d

(Débasish GW

Partner -
Membership No. 052653

New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

s/d

'Vijay Singh S

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Anjahee Kumar Lakhotia

Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan Singh Duggal

Chief Financial Officer

Director
DIN-016634772




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rs. in Lakh
For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax 24.55 46.65
Adjusted for :
Depreciation/Amortisation Expenses 775.43 154.25
Finance cost 254.02 1,029.45 209.10 363.35
Operating profit before working capital changes: 1,054.00 410.00
Adjustments for Working Capital :
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivable (627.01) (479.80)
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets (3.17) (0.01)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets (0.36) 0.74
Increase / (Decrease) in trade paybles 39.89 457.03
Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 414.47 464.51
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities 0.78 (175.39) 16.81 459.29
Cash generated from operations 878.61 869.29
Less : Direct Taxes paid 31.34 0.05
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 847.27 869.24
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Additions in fixed assets - =
Intangible assets under development -
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities:
(Repayments) / Proceeds of secured loan (797.04) (875.61)
Interest and finance charges (16.80) (39.56)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (813.85) (915.17)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 33.43 (45.93)
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents (19.63) 26.30
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents* 13.80 (19.63)
Rs. in Lakh
For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
* Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 13.80 8.09
Bank Overdraft (27.72)
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents (Including Bank overdraft) 13.80 (19.63)
The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Notes:
1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of
cash flows.
In terms of our attached report of even date.
For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants ’
Firm Registration No.326859E s/d
s/ Anjanee Kumar Lal.mona
Director
(Debasishwsh-}"’ DIN-00357695
Partner
Membership No. 052653 sa
Place : New Delhi d Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Dated : May 30th, 2018 > Director
Vijay Singh Shekhawat DIN-06634772

Chief Financial Officer




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

1. Corporate Information
MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED (or ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India and a registered office at Baani Corporate One Tower, Suite No. 303 3rd Floor, Plot No. 5, Dist.

Commercial Centre, Jasola New Delhi 110076
Description of Business:

Road on DBFOT (Design,Build, Finance, Operate &Transfer) basis:

A ‘Concession Agreement’ entered into between MBL (MP) Toll Road Company Limited. (termed as “concessionaire”) and MP Road Development
Corporation Limited on 7.12.2011, conferred the rights of concession of 18.303 km road, to implement the project and recover the project cost,
through levy of toll revenue over the toll period commencing from the date of start upto a period of 15 years (including construction period of 1.5
years). The concessionaire is entitled for annuity of Rs. 3.26 crores semi-annually for 13 years after 6 months of COD. The concessionaire is required to
transfer the project asset to MPRDC in accordance with the said concession agreement at the end of concession period.

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2016 and therefore Ind AS issued, notified
and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of preparation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting Standards as
prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable (Previous GAAP) to the
company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted /restated in compliance to Ind AS.

2.2 Recent accounting Pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“"MCA”") has
notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the finantial
statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 21 is expected to be insignificant.”

ind AS 115

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 ("amended rules").
As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18,
“Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recognised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further
the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

» Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance
with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

 Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach}
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is
expected to be insignificant”

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3. 1.Basis of Prepration

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

As the operating cycle cannot be identiflied in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets and Liabilities have
been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated.
Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions,

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for
such measurement:

(a) Level 1: inputs are at Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.

(c) Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liahility which is not based on ohservable market data (unobservable input). '




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and
fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.

3.2 Property Plant & Equipment:

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April
2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,plant and equipment.

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of]
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

3.3 Intangible Asset

The company initially recognises the intangible asset at Cost and subsequently meaure the intangible asset at its cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses by following the Cost model as per Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets" . During the construction phase of the arrangement the
company asset is classified as a right to receive a licence to charge users of the infrastructure. The company estimates the fair value of its
consideration received or receivable as equal to the forecast construction costs .

In accordance with Ind AS 38, Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the period in which it
is expected to be available for use by the company.

3.4 Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate any impairment,
recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of
assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair
value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted tt
Impairment Josses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting period the impairment
loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of ils
recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment Joss been recognized for the asset in

3.6 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within the operating cycle of the
The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial
instruments are determined on initial recognition,

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or received,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recagnition.




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists ol
consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss
Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as Fair Value
through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates
that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates
that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when

it transfers the financial asset and substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial labilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Profit and
3.7 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are nat
recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of]
resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is

3.8 Service Concession Arangements
The Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement to the extent it has a right to charge for use of the
concession infrastructure, The fair value, at the time of initial recognitions of such an intangible asset received as consideration for providing
comstruction or upgrade services in a service concession arrangement, is regarded to be its cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets
is measured at cost, less any accumulated amortisations and accumulated impairment losses.




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

3.9 Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards are transferred as per terms and no uncertainity exists regarding the amount of the
consideration that will be derived from the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment.

(i) In respect of construction/ project related activity, the Company follows percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is
determined by survey of work performed / physical measurement of work actually completed at the balance sheet date taking into account

3.10 Interest Income
Interest has been accounted using effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted / settled.

3.11 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized in the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary Differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit as well as for unused tax losses or
eredits. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are also recognized on temporary differences arising from business combinations except to the extent they arise from goodwill that is not
taken into account for tax purposes.

Deferred taxes are calculated at the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income in

3.12 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.13 Employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc, and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the
period in which the employee renders related service.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

‘The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Ruvisions
to accounting estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, expected cost of completion of cantracts,
provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in
which the results are known.
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MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

Other Intangible Assets
Carriage Ways*

Opening Cost/Deemed Cost 3,091.58 3,091.58
Additions ’
Deletion )
Adustment =
Closing Cost 3,091.58 3,091.58
Opening Accumulated amortization 256.92 102.67
Amortization during the year 775.43 154.25
Deletion £
Closing Accumulated amortization 1,032.35 256.92
2,059.23 2,834.66

Closing Net Carrying Amount

*Being the right to operate and maintain the highways on Build, Operate and Transfer

Particulars As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

Trade Receivables:

Unsecured, Considered Good* 4,438.42

4,045.55

+.438.42

4,045.55

The above balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential impact thereof.

Particulars As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

Current Financial Assets-Trade Receivables
(Unsecured - considered good unless otherwise stated)

‘Considered Good 1,309.91 1,075.77
Considered Doubtful
1,309.91 1,075.77
Less: Impairment Allowance for Doubtful Receivables -
1,309.91 1,075.77

The above balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential impact thereof.

Particulars As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

Current Financial Assets-Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 5.81 0.74
Cash on hand 7.66 7.09
Deposits with banks having maturity less than 3 months* 0.33 0.26
13.80 8.09

*Fixed deposits pledged with others as security deposit Rs. 0.33 Lakh (March 31,2017 Rs. 0.26 Lakh)




MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2018

8.1

Particulars As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

Current Financial Assets-Others

Unsecured Considered Good unless otherwise stated
Security and Other Deposits
Accrued Interest on fixed deposits 3.20

0.03

3.20

0.03

The above balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential impact thereof.

Particulars As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

Other Current Assets
Other 0.36

0.36
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(Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31,2018  As at March 31, 2017

Particulars

Equity Share Capital

Authorised Shares

1,50,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 1,50,00,000 & April 1, 2015:

1,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1.500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up

Shares

1,50,00,000 (March 31, 2016: 1,50,00,000 & April 1, 2015:

1,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share.

In the event of Liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding .

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017

Particulars
Number Value (Rs in Lakh) Number Value (Rs in Lakh)

Equity Shares:

No.of Shares at the beginning of the year 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00

Add: Bonus shares issued *

Add: Shares issued during the year =

No.of Shares at the end of the year 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate share in the company:

rch 31, 201
Name of the Shareholder No.of Shal::sat — 22/:8 No.of Shl:asr: S %
MBL Infrastructures Limited 1,50,00,000 100.00% 1,50,00,000 100.00%
(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars RefNote No As at March 31,2018  AsatMarch 31,2017
Other Equity

Capital Redemption Reserve
Securities Premium Reserve
General Reserve
Retained Earnings 11.1 290.86 219.16
Other Comprehensive Income (0C)
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

290.86 219.16

Retained Earnings generally represent the undistributed profits /amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
Refer Statement of changes in Equity (SoCE) for movement in balances of reserves.
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(Rs.in Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

12 Non Current Financial Liability - Borrowings
Secured Term Loan

External Commercial Borrowings

-From Bank 1,611.61 2,408.65
1L,611.61 2,408.65
12.1 External commercial borrowing (ECB) availed by the company from a bank is secured t
i) First charge on all the movable & immovable assets of the company, present and futu
it) First charge on escrow account.
iii)First charge on intangible assets.
iv)Pledge of 30% equity shares of the company held by the holding company.
12.2  Maturity profile of long term borrowings are set out below
Particulars Rate| .. *
b d
of Interest(%) within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years eyond 3 years
50%
From Banks between LIBOR+(4.501%; 2017.72 805.50 806.11
-7.00% p.a.)
Total 2,017.72 805.50 806.11 =

* Refer Note 16 for Current Maturities on Long Term Debt

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

13 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,537.21 1,402.11
Deferred Tax Asset 1,554.73 1,366.59
(17.53) 35.52
Gross deferred tax liability and assets for the year ended 31st March 2018 are as follows:
(Rs. in Lakh)
. Opening Balance Recognised in Profit Closing Balance
P,
articulars 01.04.2017 and Loss 31.03.2018
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference in carrying value and tax base of Financial
Liability 202 (0.86) 1.16
Difference in carrying value and tax base of Financial
asset 1,400.09 135.96 1,536.05
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,402.11 135 1,537.21
Deferred Tax Assets
Difference in carrying value and tax base of Intangible 18814
Asset 1,166.59 2 1,554.73
Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,366.59 188.14 1,554.73
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities after set off 35.52 [53.05) (17.53)

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As atMarch 31,2018

As at March 31,2017

14  Current Financial Liability - Borrowings

Unsecured
-Bank Overdraft

27.72

27.72
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15

15.1

15.2

16

17

18

181

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Ref Note No As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017

Current Financial Liability -Trade Payables
Acceptences

A) Total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises under 181

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :

Development Act, 2006

B) Others 18.2 1,943.96 1.904.07

1,943.96 1,904.07

Disclosure of Trade Payables is based on information available with Company regarding the status of suppliers if any, as defined under the
"Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006". There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers. There is no

Balances are subject to confirmations/reconciliations and consequential impact thereof.

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017

Current Financial Liability -Others
Current maturity of Long Term Debt

-From Banks 2017.72 1605.49
Others 410.06 170.60
2,427.78 1,776.09
(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As atMarch 31,2018  As at March 31,2017
Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 59.27 58.49
59.27 58.49

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Ref Note No As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017
Current Tax Liabilties (net)
Provision for Tax (net) 211 8.97 34.40
8.97 34.40

Provision for tax of Rs. 3.06 Lakh [March 31,2(017: Rs. 34.40 Lakh] is net of advance tax of Rs. 35.87 Lakh (March 31,2016: Rs. 4.53 Lakh]
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(Rs. in Lakh)|

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Revenue from Operations
Income from Annuity z )
User fee (toll) 121.24 66.28
121.24 66.28

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Other Income
Interest on fixed deposits 0.04 0.49
Interest Income wrt BOT Adjustment 392.34 486.80
Gain due to change in estimate wrt BOT Adjustment 652.52
Net Profit on Foreign currency transactions and translation = 85.59
1,044.90 572.88

Particulars Ref Note For the year ended  For the year ended
No March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 11.14 19.62
11.14 19.62
Particulars Ref Note For the year ended  For the year ended
No March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Finance Cost
Interest on loan 237.22 189.46
Other Borrowing Cost 5.03 16.52
Net Loss on Foreign currency transactions and translation 9.26 :
Interest Expense wrt transaction cost amortisation 2.51 3.12
254.02 209.10
Particulars RefNote Fortheyear ended For the year ended
No March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Ammortisation of Intangible Asset 72.64 154.25
Loss due to Change in Estimates 702.79
775.43 154.25
Particulars Ref Note For the year ended  For the year ended
No March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Other Expenses

Electricity Charges 4.28 1.12
Routine Maintenance Expenses 15.46 11.59
Periodical Maintenance Expenses 44,52 173.31
Direct Labour Expenses 6.43
Payments to auditor
Statutory audit 0.25 0.29
Director Sitting Fee - 0.50
Legal and professional fees 2.05 0.97
Insurance Charge 0.74
Consultancy Charges = 17.80
Miscellaneous expenses 28.01 3.22
TOTAL 101.00 209.54
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(a)

M

(i)

(b)

Tax Expense

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:

(Amount in Lakh)

Particulars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

March, 2018 March, 2017
Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax 5.91 0.02
Deferred Tax (53.05) 16.11
Total Income tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss (47.14) 16.13

Income tax expense recognised in OCI

Deferred tax expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense recognised in OCI

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits / (loss) before tax at the statutory income rate to

recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as below:

(Amount in Lakh)

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st

Particulars March, 2018 March, 2017
Accounting Profit/(Loss) before tax 24.55 46.65
Statutory income tax rate 33.90% 33.90%
Tax at statutory income tax rate 8.32 15.81
Disallowable expenses ¥
Non-Taxable Income
Corporate Social Responsibility
Temporary differences (53.05) 1611
Others (14.23) [15.79)
Total (47.14) 16.13
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29 Disclosure of related parties / related party transactions:
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related parties disclosures, name of the related party, related party relationship,
transaction and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have taken place during

the reporting period are:

A.

Related party disclosures
Relationship
Holding Company

Key Management Personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key

management personnel or their relatives

Name of the related party
MBL Infrastructures Limited

a) Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia (Director)
b) Bhagwan Singh Duggal (Director)

a) MBL Projects Limited

b) MBL (Haldia) Toll Road Company Limited
¢) MBL Highway Development Company Ltd

B.  Transactions carried out with related parties referred in "A" above, in ordinary course of business

Rupees in Lakh

Enterprises owned or
significantly
influenced by key

Key Management

C. Balance outstanding as on 31st March, 2018

Holding Company management Personnel
Nature of Transactions personnel or their
relatives
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Consultancy Chrages
MBL Projects Limited 16.90 ] -
MBL (Haldia) Toll Road Comapany Ltd - 0.90 *
Amount Paid
MBL Projects Limited 16.90
MBL (Haldia) Toll Road Comapany Ltd 0.90
MBL Highway Development Company Ltd 2
Development charges paid
MBL Infrastructures Limited 59.98 184.90 = =

Nature of Transactions

Holding Company

Enterprises owned or
significantly
influenced by key

Key Management

Trade Receivable
MBL Projects Limited

Other Financial Assets
Trade Payble
MBL Infrastructures Limited

Other Financial Liabilities

MBL Highway Development Company Ltd

MBL (Haldia) Toll Road Company Limited

management Personnel
personnel or their
relatives
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2018 2017 12018 2017 2018 2017
2.42
- 3.20 - -
1,924.65 1884.76
0.86 -
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The Company has defaulted in the repayment of dues (interest and principal) during the period. The details of continuing default of principal

and interest are as follows :
Period of Default (Rs. in Lacs)

Terms Loan From Banks &
Financial Institution
Interest Amount 60.32 = 66.81 279.63
Principal Amount 201.64 - 201.64 930.59

0to 30 Days 31 to 60 Days 61 to 90 Days| Above 90 Days

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of
business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated and all the known liabilities have been provided for.

Segment Reporting
The company's operations operations consists "Construction/Project Activities” and there are no other reportable segment under Ind AS-108

as identified by the Chief operating Officer of the company

Financial risk management, objective and policies

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows :-

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31,2017
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount
Financial Asset (Current and Non Current)*
At Ammortised cost
Trade Receivables 5,748.33 5,748.33 5.121.32 5.121.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13.80 13.80 8.09 8.09
Other Financial Assets 3.20 3.20 0.03 0.03
Financial Liabilities {Current and Non-Current)*
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 1,611.61 1,611.61 2,436.37 2,436.37
Trade Payables 1,943.96 1,943.96 1,904.07 1,904.07
Other Financial Liabilities 2,427.78 2,427.78 1,776.09 1,776.09

* Both financial asset and financial liability are measured using Level Il inputs

Valuation

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, current trade payables, curent trade receivable, current financial liabilities and assets and
borrowings approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The management considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost in the financial statements

approximate their fair values.

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks - credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's focus
is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The risks
are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). To manage this, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Company periodically assesses the financial
reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual
risk limits are set accordingly
The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other
receivables. Receivables from customers are reviewed/evaluated periodically by the management and appropriate provisions are made (o
the extent recovery there against has been considered to be remote. Accordingly, the main components of these allowances are a specific
clause component that relates to individually significant exposures and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in
respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of
payment statistics for similar financial assets.
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The carrying amount of respective financial assets recognised in the financial statements, (net of impairment losses) represents the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Credit exposure is managed by counterparty limits for investment of surplus funds which is reviewed by the Management. Bank balances are
held with reputed and creditworthy banking institutions.

Trade receivables disclosed include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period but against which the Company has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The aging analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowances that are past due, is given in Note no 9.2

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices

Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial
instruments.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

(a) Interestrate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. In order to optimize the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the
interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of the fixed
rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

{i) The exposure of group bprrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting perind are as follow:  (Rs in lakh)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 | March 31,2017
Variable rate borrowings 3,629.33 4,014.14
Fixed rate borrowings - =
Tolal borrowings 3,629.33 4,014.14
(it} Sensitivity
Profit/loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

(Rs in lakh)

Particulars

Increase/ Decrease in Basis Points

Impact on Profit before Tax

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2018

March 31,2017

Borrowings

+50

+50

(18.15)

(20.07)

-50

-50

18.15

20.07

(b) Foreign currency risk
The company does not have any significant transaction in foreign currency except foreign currency ECB loan .There are no outstanding
Derivative contracts as on 31st March 2018 however the company have unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31st march ,2018.

Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis has been performed on the foreign currency exposures in the company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at the reporting date i.e. 31st March 2018, net of related foreign exchange contracts.

The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due to Changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities are given below:
(¥ In Lakh)
Effect on profit before tax
For the year ended
31-Mar-17

Foreipn Exchange Risk And Sensitivity (Un hedged)

Effect on profit before tax
For the year ended
31-Mar-18
5% (18.15)
5% 18.15

Change in currency
exchange rate

(20.07)
20.07

The assumed movement in exchange rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market conditions.
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Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit and Loss

(% In Lakh)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Net foreign exchange (gain) / losses 9.26 (85.59)
TOTAL 9.26 (85.59)

(c) PriceRisk
The company does not have any investments in equity and commodity at the current year end and previous year. Therefore the
company is not exposed to price risk.

111. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The
Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company's
management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such
risk are overseen by senior management, Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling, forecast on the
basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual undiscounted payments:

(Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2018 Carrying On Demand Lessthan  |f| More than one Total
Amount One Year year
Interest bearing borrowings 3,629.33 2,017.72 1,611.61 3,629.33
(including current maturity)
Trade Payables 1,943.96 1,943.96 1,943.96
Other Financial Liabilities 410.06 = 410.06 - 410.06
Total 5,983.35 - 4,371.75 1,611.61 5,983.35
As at March 31, 2017 Carrying On Demand Less than More than one Total
Amount One Year year
Interest bearing borrowings 4,014.14 1,605.49 2,408.65 4,014.14
(including current maturity)
Trade Payables 1,904.07 - 1,904.07 1,904.07
Other Financial Liabilities 170.60 - 170.60 = 170.60
Total 6,088.81 - 3,680.16 2,408.65 6,088.81

IV Capital risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and safeguard continuity,
maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders
through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
previous year. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include
capital and other strategic investments which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a
mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other non-current borrowings. The Company’s policy is to use current and non-current
borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt
divided by total capital. Net debts are non-current and current debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents.

The company also monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital. The gearing ratio is as follows:

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Debt (Borrowings from Banks & Financial Institution) 3,629.33 4,014.14
Cash & bank balances 13.80 8.09
Net Debt(net of cash and cash equivalent) 3,615.53 4,006.05
Total Equity 1,790.86 1,719.16
Capital and net debt 5,406.39 5,725.21
Net debt to equity ratio (Gearing Ratio) 0.67 0.70

Notes-
(i) Debtis defined as long-term and short-term borrowings inctuding current maturities as described in notes
(ii) Total equity (as shown in balance sheet) includes issued capital and all other equity reserves




31

Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
i.|Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders 71.69 30.52
ii.|Weighted average number of equity shares 150 150
iii.|Basic & diluted earnings per equity share { In 3)* 0.48 0.20
32 Financial and Derivative instrument’s:-
i) ECB with currency swaps outstanding ( T in lakh)
Particulars As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
2018 2017
For long term maturities
For Short term maturities -
Total
ii) Unhedged ECB outstanding ( ¥ inlakh)
Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2018 2017
For long term maturities 1,611.61 2,408.65
For Short term maturities 2,017.72 1,605.49
Total 3,629.33 4,014.14
33 In accordance with the provisions of "Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -36 - Impairment of Assets”, the company has made an
assessment of the recoverable amount of assets based on higher of , the value in use considering its projected scale of operations,
prevailing market conditions, future cash flows and future growth projections and estimated net selling price of the assets pertaining to
its various Cash Generating Units and found recoverable amount of these assets to be higher as compared to carrying value of assets inils
Financial Statements. Accordingly, management considers that there is no need for the provision on account of impairment of assets.
34 Foreign Currency Transactions
Expenses 2017-18 2016-17
Interest - 123.25
Bank Charges
ECB Repayment 400.06 211.74
35 These financial statements have been approved by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated May 30th, 2018 for issue to
the shareholders for their adoption.
In terms of our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board
For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants s/

Firm Registration N0.326859E

Director
s/d DIN-00357695
(Debasish GE?SI e s/
Partner =
Membership No. 052653 . s/d Bhagwan Singh Duggal
New Delhi Viiay Singh Shekhawat Director

Dated : May 30th, 2018 Chief Financial Officer 1JIN-06634772

MBL (MP) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average of equity shares outstanding during the year.
(¥ In Lakh excepl otherwise stated)

Anjanee Kumar Lakholia
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D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOR'T
TO THIE MEMBERS OF MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W have audited the accompanying Ind As financial statements of MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY
i UR D the Comipany ), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statemen of Profit and Loss
tinctadimg Other Compi chensive income). the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Staiement ol'Chaneus
inlhquats and @ summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MEASAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S

Pecanoainy s Board ol Directors 1s responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the C ompunics Act, 2013
CHs vt it respect Lo the preparation of these Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view ol Ui
Livtrtoa postion. Onancial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting plmuplu

cooih cueepted i ndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
AN 'l" Companies (Aceounts) Rules. 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance oi adequiate accounting recoiiis
o sdanee with the rovisions of the Act for sateguarding of the assets of the Company aad vy preventing and
frcetvp auds and other irregularities; selection and application ol appropriate accouniing policies; mahing juids
coto-tinates thatare reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequaie internai i R
Coatrolz that were operaling effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. reln s .
he priparation and presentation of the Ind AStinancial statements that give a true and fair view and are {ree from material
wssLavmient whether due to fraud or error,

AURITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Vi esponsibility s to express an opinion on these Ind ASfinancial statements based on our audit.

W e mken o account the provisions ot the Act. the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
Fequie o oo ciuded i e andit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rutes made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing spuuﬂud under Section 143(10) of the Act. iTose
stanidards vequire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable asseranse
coout whether the inancia statements are free [rom material misstatement.

7/1, Fern Road, 1st Floor, Kolkata-700019, Emai) : cadgassociates@gmail.com, Phone : (033) 24611525,
Mobile: +91 9830846537 / 9051747507 / 0836407444 / Q820562

*.-.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Ind ASfinancial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS o

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind ASfinancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;



e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31¥March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B°.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to

the explanations given to us:
1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts,

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY

LIMITEDfor the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

vii.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified wherever practicable on a phased manner by the management/
internal auditors and the reconciliation of the quantities with the book records has been done on continuous basis.
As informed no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
year under audit, hence, clause (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company

In our opinion and accérding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the

Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard to

deposits accepted from the public during the year.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authoritiesexcept
Jor Tax deducted at Source by them which are not deposited.



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payble in respect of income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31* March,
2018for a period of more than six months from the date they became payble.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

ix. Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

X.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN
COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31*March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Act.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial



reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAL

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasisti Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018

) As on 31st March, | Ason 31st March,
Particulars Note No. 2018 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Intangible assets under development 4 = 4,581.77
(b) Financial assets
(i) Others 5 0.35 0.31
(c) Current tax assets (net) 6 2.14 4.00
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 0.97 0.96
(ii} Others 8 25.16 25.16
(b) Other current assets 9 2.05 -
TOTAL ASSETS 30.67 4,612.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 10 3,977.00 3,977.00
(b) Other equity 11 (4,581.92) =
LIABILITIES
(1) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings -
(ii) Trade payables 12 530.13 530.13
(i) Other financial liability 13 77.89 77.50
(b) Other current liabilites 14 27.57 27.57
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 30.67 4,612.20

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 24) form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d
(Debasish Ghosh)
Proprietor
Membership No. 052653
s/d
New Delhi Ganesh Kumar

Dated: May 30th, 2018 Chief Financial Officer DIN-06634772

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Anjariee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/d

Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Director




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March,2018

. As on 31st March, | Ason31st March,
Particulars Note No 2018 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operation -
Other income 15 0.03
(A) TOTAL INCOME 0.03 .
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed -
Employee benefits expense -
Finance costs }
Depreciation and amortisation expense (Ammortisation of Intangible Assel -
Other expenses 16 0.35 2
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 0.35 -

(C) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B) | (0.32) £
Exceptional Items 17 | 4,581.60
(C) Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (A-B) (4,581.92) -
Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax = -

(2) Income Tax for earlier years = =

(3) Deferred Tax - -
Total Profit/(Loss) for the period (E) (4,581,92) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -
i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss "
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (i+ii) (F) =
Total INCOME (E+F) (4,581.92) -
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs.)
Basic and Diluted (11.52) =

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 24) form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratiog No.326859E

s/d
(Débasish Ghosh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place : New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director

DIN-00357695

s/d
s/d Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Ganesh Kumar Director

Chief Financial Officer DIN-06634772




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Rupees in Lakh

Balance as on March 31, 2017

3,977.00

Add: Changes during the year 2017-18

Balance as on March 31, 2018

3.977.00

Other Equity

(Rsin Lakh

Particulars

Reserve and Surplus

Total

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Balance as on March 31,2017

Profit for the year

(4,581.92) (4,581.92)

Amount utlized for issue of Bonus shares

Dividend payments including dividend distribution tax

Transfer from retained earnings

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit Plans

Balance as on March 31,2018

(4,581.92) (4,581.92)

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 24) form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N0.326859E

s/id

(Debasish Ghash)
Proprietor
Membership No. 052653

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

s/id

Ganesh Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/d
Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Director
DIN-06634772




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rupeesin Lacs

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax & extraordinary items (0.32)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation/Amortisation Expenses

Finance cost -

(0.32)

Operating profit before working capital changes: =

Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:

(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (0.23) 61.01

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities 530.13

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 0.39 20.50

(Increase) / Decrease in short term loans & advances 0.16 - 611.64

Less : Direct taxes paid = -

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (0.16) 611.64
B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Intangible asset under development 0.17 (611.70])

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 0.17 (611.70)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) 0.01 (0.06)

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalent 0.96 1.02

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalent (Refer Note 7) 0.97 0.96

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Notes:

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of

cash flows.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d

{Debasish Ghosh)
Proprietor
Membership No. 052653

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d
Anhjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/d
Bhagwan Singh Duggal
s/id Director
Ganesh Kumar DIN-06634772

Chief Financial Officer




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

1. Corporate Information
MBL (MP) Road Nirman Company Ltd (or ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of companies Act applicable in India and a registered office at Baani Corporate One Tower, Suite No. 303 3rd Floor, Plot No. 5,

Dist. Commercial Centre, Jasola New Delhi 110076

Description of Business:

Road on DBFOT (Design,Build, Finance, Operate &Transfer) basis:

A ‘Concession Agreement’ entered into between MBL (MP} Road Nirman Company Ltd. (termed as “concessionaire”) and MP Road
Development Corporation on 22.03.2013, conferred the rights of concession of 49.86 km road, to implement the project and recover the
project cost, through levy of toll revenue over the toll period commencing from the date of start upto a period of 15 years (including
construction period of 1.5 years). The concessionaire is entitled for annuity of Rs. 8.15 crore semi-annually for 13 years after 6 months of]
COD.The concessionaire is required to transfer the project asset to MPRDC in accordance with the said concession agreement at the end of|
concession period. The said project has been terminated by MPRDC by order No. MPRDC/BOT/S-K/2016/13237 dated 18th November,
2016. The company has invoked arbitration.

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2016 and
therefore Ind AS issued, notified and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of
preparation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting
Standards as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable
(Previous GAAP) to the company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted/restated in compliance to Ind
AS.

2.2 Recent accounting Pronouncements

Ind AS 115

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018
(“amended rules”). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Reveniue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction
contracts” and Ind AS 18, “Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue
should be recognised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to
be entitled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

« Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application {Cumulative catch - up
approach)}

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS
115 is expected to be insignificant”

3. 1.Basis of Prepration

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets anil
Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of
Financial Statements’ and Schedule I1] to the Companies Act, 2013.
The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs
employed for such measurement:

(a) Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.
(c) Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data.

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has
overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs,
valuation adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

3.2 Property Plant & Equipment:

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property plant and equipment recognised as
at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,plant and equipment.
Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are

met.

3.3 Intangible Asset

The company initially recognises the intangible asset at Cost and subsequently meaure the intangible asset at its cost less accumulated
amorlisation and any impairment losses by following the Cost model as per Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets" . During the construction phase
of the arrangement the company asset is classified as a right to receive a licence to charge users of the infrastructure. The
company estimates the fair value of its consideration received or receivable as equal to the forecast construction costs .

In accordance with Ind AS 38, Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over
the period in which it is expected to be available for use by the company.

3.4 Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate any
impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whenever
the carrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of assets’ fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
from the use of the assets are discounted to their present value at appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting period the
impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss

been recognized for the asset in prior years.

3.6 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within the operating cycle
of the company or otherwise these are classified as non-current.
The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification
of financial instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i} Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost.
The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Lffective
Interest Rate (EIR) method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual’terms of the financial assel
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive

mcome.




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists of]
consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified
as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.7 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assels
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized or disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be
made.
Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

3.8 Service Concession Arangements
The Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement to the extent it has a right to charge for use of
the concession infrastructure. The fair value, at the time of initial recognitions of such an intangible asset received as consideration for
providing construction or upgrade services in a service concession arrangement, is regarded to be its cost. Subsequenl to initial
recognition, the intangible assets is measured at cost, less any accumulated amortisations and accumulated impairment losses.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [nd AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates ard
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the finaincial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful
debts/advances, expected cost ol completion of contracts, provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, it any,
between the actual results and estimales is recognised in the period in which the rgsults are known.




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Description Ason As on
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
4  Non Current Assets - Capital work in progress
INTANGIBLE ASSET UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Payment for Development Charges - 4,319.25
Payment to Independent Engineer = 101.37
Loan Processing Fees 11.24
Salary & Wages - 53.62
Insurance Expenses = 4.18
Design, Drawing & Survey Charges . 11.83
Director's Sitting Fees 1.55
Professional Charges * 26.74
Payment to auditor
Statutory audit - 0.40
Internal Audit Fee . 0.37
Filling Fees 27.69
Bank Charges - 0.26
Interest on Fixed Deposit = (0.07)
Rate & Taxes - 6.01
Miscellaneous Expenses 9.75
Preliminary expenses written off 7.58
Total - Intangible assets under development 4,581.77
5 Non Current Assets - Financial Assets - Others
Fixed deposits with maturity more than 12 months
Fixed Deposits (refer note 5.1) 0.35 0.31
Fixed deposits of maturity more than 12 months with banks 0.35 0.31
5.1 Fixed deposits pledged with others as security deposit Rs. 0.35 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 0.31 lakhs).
6 Current Tax Assets (net)
TDS Receivable 2.14 4.00
Grand Total- Current Tax Assets (net) 2.14 4.00
7  Current Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 0.97 0.96
Cash -
Current account balances with scheduled banks 0.97 0.96
8 Current Assets - Financial Assets - Others
Retention Money - MPRDC 12.01 12.01
Withheld - MPRDC 13.15 13.15
Grand Total - Current Assets - Financial Assets - Others 25.16 25.16
9  Current Assets - Other Current Assets
2.05

Other Advances

Grand Total - Current Assets - Other Current Assets 2.05




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Description Ason Ason
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
10 Equity Share Capital
Authorised Shares
3,97,70,000 (P.Y.3,97,70,000) Equity Shares of * 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
3,97,70,000 (P.Y.3,97,70,000) Equity Shares of * 10/- each fully paid up 3,977.00 3,977.00
Total Equity Share Capital 3,977.00 3,977.00

10.1

10.2

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote

per share.

Share in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As as 31.03.2018 As as 31.03.2017
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares | Percentage No. of Shares Percentage
MBL Infrastructures Limited 10000000 2514% 10000000 25.14%
MBL Projects Limited 29770000 74.86% 29770000 74.86%
OTHER EQUITY
Surplus
Opening balance = e
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss -4,581.92
Retained Earnings -4,581.92 -
Total Other Equity -4,581.92 -
Current Financial liabilites
Trade payables 530.13 530.13
530.13 530.13
Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Others
Other Liabilities
Others Liabilities 77.89 77.50
Grand Total-Current Liabilities-Financial Liabilities-Others 77.89 77.50
Other current liabilities
TDS Payable 27.57 27.57
Total Other Current Liabilities 27.57 27.57
OTHER INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits 0.03
Total Other Current Liabilities 0.03
OTHER EXPENSES
Payments to auditor
Statutory audit 0.10
Professional expenses 0.25
0.35
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
4,581.60

Exceptional Items

4,581.60




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

18 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related parties disclosures , name of the related party, related party
relationship, transaction and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have

taken place during the reporting period are:

A. Related party disclosures

Relationship
Holding company

Name of the related party
MBL Projects Limited

Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia (Director)
Ashwini Kumar Singh (Director)
Ganesh Kumar (Chief Financial Officer)

Key Management Personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key ~ MBL Infrastructures Limited

management personnel or their relatives

B. Transactions carried out with the related party referred in "A" above, in the ordinary course of business

A. Transactions
Rupees In Lakhs

Enterprises owned or

N i d
Particulars Holding Company Key Management significantly influenced by
Personnel key management personnel
or their relatives
31st March |31stMarch| 31stMarch |31stMarch| 31st March 31st March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Advance Paid
MBL Projects Limited 2.00
Development Charges Paid
MBL Infrastructures Limited - - - 697.07

B. Outstanding Balance

Rupees In Lakhs

Key Management

Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by

Holding Company Personnel key management personnel
Particulars or their relatives
31st March |31st March| 31stMarch |31st March| 31stMarch 31st March
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Other current Assets
MBL Projects Limited 2.00 -
Trade Payable
MBL Infrastructures Limited 525.85

19 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk Management
The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, return on capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Since there is no debt or borrowed funds, hence no disclosure is given on Capital Gearing ratio.




MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

20 Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

a)

b)

ii)

21

Financial instruments by category

Rupees In Lakhs

The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

Particulars As at March | March 31,

31,2018 2017

Financial Asset
Measured at amortised cost*
Other Financial Assets 25.51 2547
Cash and Bank Balances 0.97 0.96
Total Financial Assets 26.48 26.43
Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost*
Other Financial Liabilities 77.89 77.50
Total Financial Liabilities 77.89 77.50

* Both financial asset and financial liability are measured using Level Il inputs

Fair Value Technique

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, others financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amount largely due to
the short-term nature of these instruments. The Board considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised at cost/amortised cost in the financial statements approximates their fair values.

Financial Risk Management
The Company is yet to commence its business operations and accordingly it is at present exposed to liquidity issue only.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price.
The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The
Company’s management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and
policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position

through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based
on contractual undiscounted payments:

Other Laibilities |
i t
Year Carrying On Demand Lessthan More than Total
Amount One Year one year
As at March 31, 2018 105.46 - 105.46 2 105.46
Total 105.46 - 105.46 - 105.46
i h
Year Carrying On Demand Lessthan Moret a‘n Total
Amount One Year one year
As at March 31, 2017 105.07 - 105.07 - 105.07

Total 105.07 - 105.07 = 105.07
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

MBL (MP) ROAD NIRMAN COMPANY LIMITED

The company’s operation predominantly consist of infrastructure development, construction and operation and this is its
operating business segment and all other activities revolve around the main activity. Accordingly, there being no other reportable
segment separate disclosures as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” have not been made.

The project has been terminated by MPRDC by order No. MPRDC/BOT/S-K/2016/13237 dated 18th November, 2016. The

company has invoked arbitration.

The financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the Company on May 30th, 2018 for issue to the

shareholders for their adoption.

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratio) No.326859E

s/d
(Débasish Ghosh)
Propriet6r
Membership No. 052653

New Delhi
Dated: May 30th, 2018

s/id

Ganesh Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board

s/d

Anjaniee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/id

Bhagwan Singh Duggal
Director
DIN-06634772
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D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY
LMD the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and [.oss
Geiciudme Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes
il Guity and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tne Company s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013
CUC AT with respect to the preparation of these Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view of (i
Caunckid position. financial performance and cash flows ol the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
penesully aceepled in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
oithe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting vecor i3
1 aecordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
detecting trauds and other irregularities; selection and application ol appropriate accounting policies: making judpmenis
i estinaies that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of'adequate intermal i
coiivis hat were operaling eftectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. retesani 1w
the preparation and presentation of the Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view and arc frec {rom inaerial
s aenient. whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOK’S RESPONSIBILITY
Ot responsibllity is (o express an opinion on these Ind ASfinancial statements based on our audit.

W have when into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matlers which are
required o be inctuded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

W conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specilied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Ihosc
Slindaids require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pertorm the audit 1o obtain reasonable ussuruii. ¢
shottwnether the linancial statements are free from material misstatement.

7/1. Fern Road, 1st Floor, Kolkata-700019, Email : cadgassociates@gmail.com, Phone : (033) 24611525,
Mobile: +91 9830846537 / 9051747507 / 0836407444 / 0830567400



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Ind ASfinancial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind ASfinancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;



e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B°.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD
COMPANY LIMITEDfor the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i

ii.

iil.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

On the basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own fixed Assets at any-time during
the year under audit, hence, clause (i) of the order is not applicable to the company

Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
year under audit, hence, clause (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard to
deposits accepted from the public during the year.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payble in respect of income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31* March,
2018for a period of more than six months from the date they became payble.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.



XI.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish-Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD
COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31¥March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial



controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial



reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018

Rs in lakh
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars NoteNo | March, 2018 | March, 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 4 0.16 0.16
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 1.30 7.01
{(b) Other current assets 6 5.74 0.37
TOTAL ASSETS 7.20 7.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity share capital 7 7.25 7.25
(b) Other equity 8 (0.28) 0.14
LIABILITIES
(1) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Trade Payables 9 0.11 0.14
(b) Other current liabilites 10 0.12 0.01
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 7.20 7.54
Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 20) form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report on even date
For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E s/d
s/d Uma Devi Lakhotia
Director
(Debasish Ghosh] DIN-00357752
Partner
Membership No. 052653 s/id
“Prakash
Place: New Delhi Director

Dated : May 30th, 2018 DIN-07305062




MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2018

Rsin lakh
: Ason 31st Ason 31st
P 1

articutars NoteNo | warch, 2018 | March, 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operation 11 . 0.90
(A) TOTAL INCOME - 0.90
EXPENSES
Other expenses 12 0.42 0.85
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 0.42 0.85
(C) Profit/(Loss) before tax (A-B) (0.42) 0.05
Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax 18 . 0.02
(2) Deferred Tax 5 -
Total Profit/(Loss) for the period [D) (0.42) 0.03

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - . =
Remeasurements of the Net Defined Benefit Plans:

i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss Account - : -

i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss Account = =
Total Other Comprehensive Income (E) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (D+E) (0.42) 0.03
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs) 19 (0.58) 0.04
Basic

Diluted

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 20) form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates For arnd on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d
s/d Uma Devi Lal.(hotla
Director
(Debasish Ghesti] DIN-00357752
Partner
Membership No. 052653
s/d
“Prakash
Place: New Delhi Director

Dated : May 30th, 2018 DIN-07305062




MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

A Equity Share Capital

Particulars Rupees in Lakhs
Balance as on March 31, 2017 7.25
Add: Changes during the year 2017-18 -
Balance as on March 31, 2018 7.25

B Other equity

Rupees in Lakhs

Reserves and Surplus

i Total
Particulars Retained Earnings ot
Balance as on March 31, 2017 0.14 s 0.14
Profit for the year (0.42) - (0.42)
Balance as on March 31, 2018 (0.28) g (0.28)

Retained Earnings generally represent the undistributed profits /amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 20) form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No0.326859E s/id
uma vevi Laknoua
. s/d Director
(Debasish__GJmsﬁ] DIN-00357752
Proprietar
Membership No. 052653 s/d
3
Prakash
Place: New Delhi Director

Dated : May 30th, 2018 DIN-07305062




MBL (Haldia) Toll Road Company Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rupees in Lakhs
For the year ended| For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax & extraordinary items (0.42) 0.05
Operating profit before working capital changes (0.42) 0.05
Adjusted for:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payble (0.03) s
Increase / (Decrease) in other Liabilities 0.11 0.06
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (5.37) 0.30
Less : Direct taxes paid 0.02
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (5.71) 0.39
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5.71) 0.39
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents 7.01 6.62
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents {refer note 5) 1.30 7.01
The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Notes:
1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of
cash flows.
For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E s/d

Uma Devi Lakhotia
s/d m ‘
Director

{Débasish F-_!_wsh]"{ DIN-00357752
Proprictof
Membership No. 052653 s/d

‘Prakash
Director

Place: New Delhi
DIN-07305062

Dated : May 30th, 2018




MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

1. Corporate Information

MBL (Haldia) Toll Road Company Limited (or ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of companies Act applicable in India and a registered office at Baani Corporate One Tower, Suite No. 303 3rd Floor, Plot No. 5, Dist.
Commercial Centre, Jasola New Delhi 110076

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2016 and therefore Ind AS issued, notified
and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of preparation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting Standards as
prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable (Previous GAAP) to the
company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted/restated in compliance to Ind AS.

2.2 Recent accounting Pronouncements

Ind AS 115

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules”).
As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18,
"Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recognised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further
the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance
with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up
approach)
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is
expected to be insignificant”

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3. 1.Basis of Prepration
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets and Liabilities have
been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and
Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated.
Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for
such measurement:

(a) Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.
(c) Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data.

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and
fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.

3.2 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial
instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage,




MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

3.3 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of|
past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are not disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

3.4 Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards are transferred as per terms and no uncertainity exists regarding the amount of
the consideration that will be derived from the contract. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment.

(if) In respect of construction/ project related activity, the Company follows percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is
determined by survey of work performed / physical measurement of work actually completed at the balance sheet date taking into account
contractual price/ unit rates and revision thereto.

3.5 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized in the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary Differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit as well as for unused tax losses or
credits. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are also recognized on temporary differences arising from business combinations except to the extent they arise from goodwill that is not
taken into account for tax purposes.

Deferred taxes are calculated at the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income in
equity, in which case the corresponding deferred tax is also recognized directly in equity.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, expected cost of completion of
contracts, provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the
period in which the results are known.
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MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Current Tax Asset
Rs in lakh
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Tax Deducted at Source (refer note 4.1) 0.16 0.16
TOTAL 0.16 0.16

Tax deducted at source of 0.20 Lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 0.20 lakhs) is net of provision for tax of Rs. 0.04 lakhs (March

31, 2017: Rs. 0.04 lakhs)

Current Financial Assets-Cash and Cash Equivalents

Rs in lakh
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Cash in Hand 1.10 -
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 0.20 7.01
TOTAL 1.30 7.01
Other Current Assets
Rs in lakh
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Advance to Related Parties 5.74 .
Prepaid Expenses 0.37
TOTAL 5.74 0.37
Equity Share Capital
Rs in lakh
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Authorised Shares
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Shares
72,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 7.25 7.25
7.25 7.25

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share.

In the event of Liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding .

100% equity shares are held by MBL Infrastructures Ltd., the holding company and its nominees.
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Other Equity

Rs in lakh
Particulars As atMarch As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Retained Earnings* (0.28) 0.14
TOTAL (0.28) 0.14

* Refer Statement of Changes in Equity (SoCE) for movement in balances of reserves.
Retained Earnings generally represent the undistributed profits /amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at March As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Trade Payables 0.11 0.14
TOTAL 0.11 0.14
Other Current Liabilities
Rs in lakh
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2018 31,2017
Statutory Dues Payable 0.01 0.01
Advance from Customers 0.11
TOTAL 0.12 0.01
Rsinlakh
For the year For the year
Description ending 31st March ending 31st
2018 March 2017
Income - Revenue from Operations
Gross Receipt
Consultancy Fees 0.90
Total - 0.90
Rs in lakh
For the year For the year
Description ending 31st March ending 31st
2018 March 2017
Expenses - Other Expenses
Auditor’s Remuneration
As Audit Fees 0.05 0.05
Director Sitting Fees 0.20
Bank Charges -
Filing Fees = 0.07
Legal and Professional Fees - 0.16
Preliminary Expenses Written off 0.37 0.37
0.42 0.85

Grand Total - Other Expenses
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MBL (HALDIA)} TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related parties disclosures, name of the related party, related party relationship, transaction and
outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have taken place during the reporting period are:

A. Related party disclosures

Relationship Name of the related party
Holding company MBL Infrastructures Limited
Key Management Personnel a) Uma Devi Lakhotia (Director)

b) Prakash (Director)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key a) MBL (MP) Toll Road Company Limited

management personnel or their relatives
B. Transactions carried out with the related party referred in "A" above, in the ordinary course of business

A. Transactions
Rupees In Lakhs

Enterprises owned or
significantly influenced by key
management personnel or their

Particulars relatives

Key Management Personnel

31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2018 2017 2018 2017

Consultancy fee received
MBL (MP) Toll Road Company Limited - = . 0.90

B. Outstanding Balance
Rupees In Lakhs

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced
Holding Company by key management personnel or their
N relatives
Particulars
31st March 2018 31st March 2017 313;0“::““ 31st March 2017
Other Liabilities
MBL (MP) Toll road Co. Ltd. . - < 0.09
Advance given
MBL I[nfrastructures Limited 4.89 - -
MBL {MP) Toll Road Company Limited - - 0.86 =
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk Management

The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return on capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

At present the Company has not taken any debt from any lender, Accordingly gearing ratio has not been provided

Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At present the Company has only cash and cash equivalent. The fair value
of which is equal to its carrying amount.

Risk Management
Market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk are as follows
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk, Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments. The Company at
present does not have the above mentioned financial instruments and therefore not expected to such risks.
(ii) Sensitivity
Profit/loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates,
Credit risk
The company has no debt outstanding from its customer and as such there is no exposure to the credit risk.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price, The Company’s
objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Company's management is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk arc overseen by senior
management. Management monitors the company’s net liquidity position through rolling, forccast on the basis of expected cash llows,
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As per our report on even date
For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants s/d
Firm Registration/No.326859E

. s/id Director
{Dé]:usishﬁbnﬁ];} DIN-00357752
Partner
Membership No. 052653 s/d

Trakash
Director

Place: New Delhi
Dated : May 301th, 2018 DIN-07305062

MBL (HALDIA) TOLL ROAD COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2018

The company’s operation predominantly consist of infrastructure development, construction and operation and this is its operating
business segment and all other activities revolve around the main activity. Accordingly, there being no other reportable segment
separate disclosures as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” have not been made.

Tax Expense

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:
(Amount in Lakh)

Year ended|Year ended

Particulars Sist 31st
March, March,
2018 2017
Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax = 0.02
Deferred Tax = :
Total Income tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss - 0.02

Income tax expense recognised in OCI

Deferred tax expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax expense recognised in OCl =

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits / (loss) before tax at the statutory income rate to recognised
income tax expense for the year indicated are as below:
(Amount in Lakh)

Year ended |Year ended
: 31st 31st
Particulars March, March,
2018 2017
Accounting Profit/(Loss) before tax (0.42) 0.05
Statutory income tax rate 33.90% 33.90%
Tax at statutory income tax rate 0.02
Temporary differences - =
Others - -
Total - 0.02

Earnings per Share
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company hy
the weighted average of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(Rs in lakh)

. 31st 31st March,
Particulars March, 2017
2018
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders {0.42) 0.03
Weighted average number of equity shares 0.73 0.73
Basic & diluted earnings per equity share ( In 3)* (0.58) 0.04

The financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the Company on May 30th, 2018 for issue to the shareholders
for their adoption.

Lma eyl Laknoua
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D GHOSH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED( the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes inliquily and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

VIANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I'he Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view ol the
financial position, linancial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
vencrally aceepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of 1he Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
deecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and cstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating etfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
niisstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind ASfinancial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions ot the Act and the Rules made there under,

W conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Stundards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the linancial statements are free from material misstatement.

7/1, Fern Road, 1st Floor, Kolkata-700019, Email : cadgassociates@gmail.com, Phone : (033) 24611525,
Mobile: +91 9830846537 / 9051747507 / 0836407444 / 96305671108



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Ind ASfinancial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;



d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind ASfinancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31¥March 2018 taken onrecord by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/id

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653
Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to statutory audit of M/s MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD
LIMITEDfor the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physically verified wherever practicable on a phased manner by the management/
internal auditors and the reconciliation of the quantities with the book records has been done on continuous basis.
As informed no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. Onthe basis of information and explanations provided to us, the company did not own inventory at any-time during the
year under audit, hence, clause (ii) of the order is not applicable to the company

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan to
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not receive any
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard to
deposits accepted from the public during the year.

vi. The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act. We
have broadly reviewed accounts and records and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records
have been made & maintained but no detailed examination of such records and accounts have been carried out by us.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payble in respect of income tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess as at 31* March,
2018for a period of more than six months from the date they became payble.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.



X.

Xi.

xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV.

XVI1.

Based on information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhicompany.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/id

Debasish Ghosh
Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date in respect to the internal financial
control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Act of M/s MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS)
ROAD LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS)
ROAD LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31*March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and mainfenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan



and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over



financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm‘s Registration No. 326859E

s/d
Debasish-Ghosh
 Partner
Membership No. 052653

Place:New Delhi
Date:30" day of May, 2018



‘| Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

A Equity Share Capital

MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED

Particulars Rupees in Lakhs
Balance as on March 31,2017 5.00
Shares issued during the period =
Balance as on March 31, 2018 5.00
Other equity

Rupees in Lakhs

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars Total
General Retained Earnings
Reserve
Balance as on March 31, 2017 - (6.08) (6.08)
Profit for the year - (0.05) (0.05)
Balance as on March 31, 2018 - {6.13) (6.13)

Retained earning generally represent the undistributed profits/amount of accumalated earning of the Company
Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 14) form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.326859E s
Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia
Director
s DIN-00357695
(Debasish-Ghosh)
Partner
Membership No. 052653 s/d
Sunita Palta
Place: New Delhi Director

Dated : May 30th, 2018 DIN-03612793




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2018
Rupees in Lakh

Particulars Note No As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2018 2017
ASSETS
(1) Non current assets
(a) Other non current assets 4 -
(2) Current assets
(b) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 5.00 5.00
TOTAL ASSETS 5.00 5.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 6 5.00 5.00
(b) Other equity (6.13) (6.08)
LIABILITIES
(2) Current liabilites
(a) Financial liabilites
(i) Other financiat liability 7 6.13 6.08
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 5.00 5.00

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 14) form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.326859E s/
s/d Afijanee Kumar Lakhotia
(Debasish Ghosli) Director
Partner DIN-00357695
Membership No. 052653 s/
Sufsfa Palta
Place: New Delhi Director

Dated : May 30th, 2018 DIN-03612793




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2018

Rupees in Lakh
. Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st
Harticulars Note No March 2018 March 2017
EXPENSES
Other expenses 8 0.05 6.08
(B) TOTAL EXPENSES 0.05 6.08
(C) Profit/{Loss) before tax (A-B) (0.05) {6.08)
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax - =
(2) Deferred Tax -
Total Profit/(Loss) for the period (D) (0.05) (6.08)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =
Remeasurements of the Net Defined Benefit Plans:
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans - Remeasurement of
employee benefit obligations
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans - Income tax effect =
Total Other Comprehensive Income (D) =
Total INCOME (C+D}) (0.05) (6.08)
Earning per equity share( Face Value Rs. 10/- each) 14 (0.10) (12.16)
Basic
Diluted

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 14) form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report on even date

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.326859E s/d
s Afhjanee Kumar Lakhotia
(Depbasisn ungsay Pirector
Partner ~ DIN-00357695
Membership No. 052653
P s/d
Sunjtd Palta
Director

Place: New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

DIN-03612793




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Rupees in Lakh

For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A, Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax
Operating profit before working capital changes:

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 0.05

(Increase) / Decrease in short term loans & advances

Less : Direct taxes paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Intangible asset under development
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B)

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalent
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalent (Refer Note 5)

(0.05) (6.08)

6.08
0.05 - 6.08

5.00

- 5.00

= 5.00

5.00 =+
5.00 5.00

The accompaying notes are an integral part of these financial statement

Notes:

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement

of cash flows.

For D Ghosh & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.326859E

s/d
(bebasisn Ghosi)
Partner

Membership No. 052653

New Delhi
Dated : May 30th, 2018

For and on behalt ot

s/d

Anjanee Kumar Laknotia
Director
DIN-00357695

s/d

}ﬁnita Palta
Director
DIN-03612793




2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

2.1

2.2

3.2

MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Corporate Information:

MBL (Udaipur Bypass) Road Limited (or ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated and domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
companies Act applicable in India and a registered office at Baani Corporate One Tower, Suite No. 303 3rd Floor, Plot No. 5, Dist. Commercial Centre,
Jasola New Delhi 110025

Description of Business:

Road on DBOT (Design,Build,Operate and Transfer) Hybrid Annuity mode basis:

A ‘Concession Agreement’ entered into between MBL (Udaipur Bypass) Road Limited (termed as “concessionaire”) and National Highways Authority
of India on 27.05.2016, conferred the rights of concession of Six-Laning of Greenfield Udaipur bypass [Connection between NH-76 at existing km
118+500 at Debari to NH-8 Km 287+400 at Kaya village (Length 23.883)] to be executed on design, build, operate and transfer DBOT (Hybrid
Annuity) basis, Package-1V under NHDP phase V in the State of Rajasthan, to implement the project and the 60% of Bid Project Cost, adjusted for the
Price Index Multiple, which shall be due and payable in 30 (thirty) structured biannual instalments commencing from the 180th (one hundred and
eightieth) day of COD and every six months thereafter. The said project has been terminated by NHAI vide order No. NHAI/NHDP-V/2015/K-U-A/CU-
Pkg.-1V/897 dated 09th January, 2017.

Statement of Compliance

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2016 and therefore Ind AS issued, notified
and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have been considered for the purpose of preparation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting and the Accounting Standards as
prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, then applicable (Previous GAAP) to the
company.Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have now been recasted/restated in compliance to Ind AS.

Recent Pronouncements

Ind AS 115
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules”).
As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18,
“Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recognised when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Further
the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
« Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance
with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

« Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is
expected to be insignificant”

Siginificant Accounting Policies :

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Assets and Liabilities have
been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated.
Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty transaction between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for
such measurement:

(a) Level 1: Inputs are at Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2:Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the asset or liability.
(c) Level 3:Inputs for the asset or liability which is not based on observable market data (unobservable input).

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and
fair value hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.

Property, Plant and Equipments
Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost ol

replacing part of the plant and equipment and boirowing costs for long-term gogstEuction projects if the recognition criteria are met.




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Intangible Asset

The company initially recognises the intangible asset at Cost and subsequently meaure the intangible asset at its cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses by following the Cost model as per Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets" . During the construction phase of the
arrangement the company asset is classified as a right to receive a licence to charge users of the infrastructure. The company estimates the
fair value of its consideration received or receivable as equal to the forecast construction costs .

In accordance with Ind AS 38, Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Other intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the period in which it
is expected to be available for use by the company.

Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate any impairment,
recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of
assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair
value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted to
their present value at appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting period the
impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within the operating cycle of the
company or otherwise these are classified as non-current.

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial
instruments are determined on initial recognition.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk

of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
measured at amortized cost.

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or received,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(iii)Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive inconie if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists ol
consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

3.7

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as Fair
Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates
that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates

that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit

Insses.
However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss

allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of]
past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the company makes estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates include useful lives of Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, expected cost of completion of contracts,
provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in
which the results are known. ,




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2018

Rupees in Lakh
As at
31.03.2018 Asat31.03.2017
4 Non Current Assets
Preliminary expenses - 6.03
Less: Preliminary expenses written off - 6.03
Total - Non Current Asset - -
5 Current Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cheque in Hand -
Current account balances with scheduled banks -
Cash 5.00 5.00
Cash-in-hand 5.00 5.00
Fixed deposits of maturity less than 3 months with banks z :
Fixed deposits of maturity more than 3 months but less than
12 months with banks - :
Total - Cash and cash equivalents 5.00 5.00
6  Equity Share Capital
Authorised
50,00,000 equity shares of * 10/- each 500.00 500.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully paid up share
50,000 (50,000) equity shares of " 10/- each fully paid up 5.00 5.00
Total Equity Share Capital 5.00 5.00
6.1 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share.
6.2 Inthe event of Liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding .
6.3 Share in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Asat31.03.2018 Asat31.03.2017
Name of Shareholders
No. of Shares | Percentage | No.of Shares Percentage
MBL Projects Limited 49950 99.90% 49950 99.90%
As at
7  Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Others 31.03.2018 Asat31.03.2017
Other Liabilities
D Ghosh & Associates 0.10 0.05
MBL Infrastructures Limited 5.84 5.84
N S & Associates 0.19 0.19
Total 6.13 6.08
8 Other Expenses
Audit Fees 0.05 0.05
Preliminary expenses written off 6.03
0.05 6.08

Total- Other Expenses
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MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company at present has not started any operations and accordingly it doesnot foresee any market risk, credit risk or liquidity risk,
Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy

The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:

Rupees in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,

2018 2017

Financial Asset *
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalent 5.00 5.00
Total Financial Assets 5.00 5.00

Financial Liabilities*
Other financial liability 613 6.08
Total Financial Liabilities 6.13 6.08
* Both the financial assetand financial liabilties are measured using Level 2 value inputs

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At present the Company has only cash and cash
equivalent. The fair value of which is equal to its carrying amount.

Disclosure of related parties / related party transactions:

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on Related parties disclosures, name of the related party, related party relationship,
transaction and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transaction have taken place during
the reporting period are:

A
Relationship Name of the related party
)] Holding Company MBL Projects Limited
(i)  Key Management Personnel a) Anjanee Kumar Lakhotia (Director)

b) Sunita Palta (Director)

(iti)  Enterprises owned or significantly
influenced by key management personnel MBL Infrastructures Limited
or their relatives

B. Transactions carried out with related parties referred in "A" above, in ordinary course of business Rupees in Lakhs
Enterprises owned or significantly

Nature of Transactions Holding Company influenced by Key Management

Personnel or their relatives

31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017 (31st March 2018 31st March 2017

Share application money received
MBL Projects Limited - 5.00
MBL Infrastructures Limited - 0.01
Advance Received
MBL Infrastructures Limited 5.84 5.84




MBL (UDAIPUR BYPASS) ROAD LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

C. Balance outstanding as on 31st March, 2018

Enterprises owned or significantly

Nature of Transactions Holding Company influenced by Key Management

Personnel or their relatives

31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017 |31st March 2018| 31st March 2017

Other Current Liabilities
MBL Infrastructures Limited - 5.84 5.84

12 The company’s operation predominantly consist of infrastructure development, construction and operation and this is its operating
business segment and all other activities revolve around the main activity. Accordingly, there being no other reportable segment separate
disclosures as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” have not been made.

13 Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(% In Lakh except otherwise stated)

Particulars 31st March, 2018 |31st March, 2017,
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders (0.05) (6.08)
Weighted average number of equity shares 0.50 0.50
Basic & diluted earnings per equity share ( In )* (0.10) (12.16)

14 The financial statements have been approved by the board of Directors of the Company on May 30th, 2018 for issue to the shareholders

for their adoption.
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